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MAYOR’S MESSAGE 
It has continued to be an honour to lead Warrumbungle Shire 

Council as Mayor, together with Councillor Aniello Iannuzzi as 

Deputy Mayor. I would like to thank my fellow Councillors for their 

constructive leadership of Warrumbungle Shire Council. I 

commend Councillors and Council staff on their focus on achieving 

the best possible outcomes for our area. 

 

This has been a challenging year with our Shire facing a 

devastating drought which has continued to impact throughout 

2019/20 and during the beginning of 2020 the COVID-19 

pandemic hit our nation.  

 

The impacts of drought have continued to be felt by our farmers, businesses and residents. 

Council has taken a leading role in engaging with the NSW Government to provide greater 

water security for residents. With the weather turning in our favour at the beginning of 2020 it 

is very pleasing to see that Timor Dam is now back to 100% capacity.  

 

The recent COVID-19 pandemic is unprecedented in living memory. Council has been 

following the directions from the Federal and State Government throughout the COVID-19 

pandemic and has continued to maintain important services for the community.  

 

Despite the ongoing challenges for our communities Council has some exciting major 

projects coming to our region. One of the highlights this year was the commencement of 

works on the Inland Rail project. The construction works for this project could have a positive 

impact for local businesses and looking to the future, the access to the rail line gives 

producers a local option for transporting grain and other goods. Another prospective 

opportunity will be the increased renewable energy projects which are proposed for the 

southern end of the Shire.  

 

Our Warrumbungle area is well known for its stunning natural resources, from Coolah Tops 

in the south to the Warrumbungles in the north and our renowned night skies. We are well-

placed regionally to receive the benefits of travellers between Melbourne and Brisbane and 

to access larger regional centres. At our heart is the communities that make the 

Warrumbungle area home. 

 

We are people who come together during hard times; who value family, friends, a great chat 

and looking out for each other; who support the local area. Through good times and bad, our 

communities continue to shine.  

 

DENIS TODD 

MAYOR 
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GENERAL MANAGER’S 

MESSAGE 
2019/20 has been a year of both achievements and 

challenges for Warrumbungle Shire Council. Major 

investments have been made in the Warrumbungle 

communities through Council’s capital works program, 

however the year has been dominated by the impacts of 

drought and the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

A number of projects have been delivered in 2019/20. With 

the generous support of the NSW and Federal Governments 

a number of grant funding opportunities have been 

successful. In particular, Council received over $3 million for 

road repairs under the NSW Government Fixing Local Roads 

Funding program; $1.3 million for a new Robertson Oval sporting amenities building; $1 

million for various small projects across the Shire under Australian Government Drought 

Communities Programme; and $590,000 under NSW Government’s Stronger Country 

Communities Fund for upgrades to Mendooran Park Playground facilities and shades 

installed at Milling Park, a Stop and Play park Coonabarabran, and a new Jump the Stump 

Skate Park Coolah. 

 

The NSW Government’s Stronger Country Communities Fund Round Two projects which 

have been completed this year were Leadville Hall and amenities block upgrades, 

construction of the Baradine Skate Park, lighting upgrade for Bowen Oval, improving existing 

infrastructure at the Coonabarabran Skate Park, installation of a new transportable building 

for the Mendooran Turf Club, and installation of a new amenities block at the Mendooran 

Mechanics Institute.  

 

This year has provided Council with some challenges both financially and operationally with 

the ongoing drought and COVID-19 pandemic. We have been extremely grateful that the 

COVID-19 pandemic did not affect any essential Council Services throughout the lock down 

period and I commend Council staff for providing such strong services during this 

challenging period.  

 

It has been a privilege to work in partnership with the Mayor, Councillors, the Executive 

Leadership Team and staff of the Warrumbungle Shire. I am pleased to present the 2019/20 

Annual Report. 

 

ROGER BAILEY 

GENERAL MANAGER 
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OUR COMMUNITY 
The Warrumbungle Shire local government area is positioned mid-way between Brisbane 
and Melbourne on the Newell Highway. Taking in the towns of Baradine, Binnaway, Coolah, 
Coonabarabran, Dunedoo and Mendooran, our local government area is shown below. 
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COMMUNITY SNAPSHOT  
 

OUR MOST POPULAR EMPLOYMENT INDUSTRIES INCLUDE AGRICULTURE, 

GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION, HEALTH CARE, AND EDUCATION AND TRAINING. 

Population, employment and income data sourced from 2016 Census data. 

 
9,348 

TOTAL POPULATION 
Baradine 593 
Binnaway 425 

Coolah 798 
Coonabarabran 2,537 

Dunedoo 1,215 
Mendooran 302 

 
917  

ABORIGINAL AND 
TORRES STRAIT 

ISLANDER POPULATION 
 

 
55.7% 

EMPLOYED FULL TIME 

30.6% 
EMPLOYED PART TIME 

 
0.43% pa 

AVERAGE  
POPULATION DECLINE 

 

 
49 

MEDIAN AGE 
Median age NSW 38 

Median age Australia 37 

 
7.9% 

UNEMPLOYMENT RATE 
Average unemployment NSW 

6.3% 
Average unemployment 

Australia 6.9% 

 
$479 

MEDIAN WEEKLY INCOME 
Average weekly income NSW $664 

Average weekly income Australia $662 
 
 

 

 
6,600 

RATED PROPERTIES 
2,627 designated farmland or rural 
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ORGANISATION 
Warrumbungle Shire Council is managed by a General Manager with three Directorates. Council’s organisation structure is shown below. 
 

General Manager 

Director Technical Services 

Manager Roads 

Manager Urban 
Services 

Manager Projects

Manager Fleet

Manager Organiational 
Development 

Director Environment and 
Development

Manager Planning 
and Regulation

Manager Economic 
Development and 

Tourism 

Manager 
Warrumbungle 

Water

Director Corporate and 
Community Services

Chief Financial 
Officer 

Manager 
Community 

Services 

Manager 
Corporate Services 
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VISION, MISSION AND VALUES 
 
Vision 
Excellence in Local Government 
 
Mission 
Council will provide 

• Quality, cost effective services that will enhance our community’s lifestyle, environment, 
opportunity and prosperity; 

• Infrastructure and services which meet the social and economic needs and aspirations of 
the community now and in the future; 

• Effective leadership and good governance, by encouraging teamwork, through a 
dedicated responsible well trained workforce. 

 
Values 
✓ Honesty 
Frank and open discussion, taking responsibility for our actions 
 
✓ Integrity 
Behaving in accordance with our values 
 
✓ Fairness 
Consideration of the facts and a commitment to two way communication 
 
✓ Compassion 
Working for the benefit and care of our community and the natural environment 
 
✓ Respect 
To ourselves, colleagues, the organisation and the community listening actively and 
responding truthfully 
 
✓ Transparency 
Open and honest interactions with each other and our community 
 
✓ Passion 
Achievement of activities with energy, enthusiasm and pride 
 
✓ Trust 
Striving to be dependable, reliable and delivering outcomes in a spirit of goodwill 
 
✓ Opportunity 
To be an enviable workplace creating pathways for staff development 
  



 
Warrumbungle Shire Council 2019/20 Annual Report 

Page 10 

GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 
Council is guided by section 8 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), which contains a 
set of principles to provide guidance to enable councils to carry out their functions in a way 
that facilitates local communities that are strong, healthy and prosperous. 
 

Local Government Act 1993, section 8A ‘Guiding principles for councils’: 
 

(1) Exercise of functions generally. The following general principles apply to the 
exercise of functions by councils: 
 
(i) Councils should provide strong and effective representation, leadership, 

planning and decision-making. 
(ii) Councils should carry out functions in a way that provides the best possible 

value for residents and ratepayers. 
(iii) Councils should plan strategically, using the integrated planning and 

reporting framework, for the provision of effective and efficient services and 
regulation to meet the diverse needs of the local community. 

(iv) Councils should apply the integrated planning and reporting framework in 
carrying out functions so as to achieve desired outcomes and continuous 
improvements. 

(v) Councils should work cooperatively with other councils and the State 
government to achieve desired outcomes for the local community. 

(vi) Councils should manage lands and other assets so that current and future 
local community needs can be met in an affordable way. 

(vii) Councils should work with others to secure appropriate services for local 
community needs. 

(viii) Councils should act fairly, ethically and without bias in the interests of the 
local community. 

(ix) Councils should be responsible employers and provide a consultative and 
supporting working environment for staff. 

 

(2) Decision-making. The following principles apply to decision-making by councils 
(subject to any other applicable law): 
 
(a) Councils should recognise diverse local community needs and interests. 
(b) Councils should consider social justice principles. 
(c) Councils should consider the long term and cumulative effects of actions on 

future generations. 
(d) Councils should consider the principles of ecologically sustainable 

development. 
(e) Council decision-making should be transparent and decision-makers are to 

be accountable for decisions and omissions. 

 

(3) Community participation. Councils should actively engage with their local 
communities through the use of the integrated planning and reporting framework 
and other measures. 
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INTEGRATED PLANNING AND 

REPORTING FRAMEWORK 
All councils in NSW are required to operate within the Integrated Planning and Reporting 
(IP&R) Framework. This framework aims to facilitate a strong and sustainable local 
government system by ensuring all councils have in place strategic plans, underpinned by 
community priorities and supported by appropriate resources. Warrumbungle Shire Council’s 
IP&R is illustrated below. 

 

•Community Strategic Plan

•Other Strategic Plans (e.g. 
Econcomic Development 

Strategy; Heritage 
Strategy)

•Resourcing Strategy - Financial 
Plan; Asset Management Plan; 

Workforce Plan

•Delivery Program

•Operational Plan - Revenue 
and Policy Statement; Budget; 

Fees and Charges

•Quarterly Budget Review 
Statements

•Six-monthly Delivery 
Program Progress reports

•Annual Report

•End of Term Report 
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COMMUNITY PRIORITIES 
The Warrumbungle Shire Community Strategic Plan 2017-2032 (the Plan) was developed 
following community engagement. The Plan’s vision describes the importance of our sense 
of community spirit, our children and our homes. The community’s plan for the future will 
support the growth, resilience and health of our people, our neighbourhoods, the 
environment and local economy. 
 
The Plan identifies seven key areas of interest to the community’s needs and aspirations: 

 
Wellington Street, Baradine 

 

1 NATURAL ENVIRONMENT  
We value our pristine, healthy, natural environment with clean water resources and 
diverse flora and fauna. We enjoy the close proximity to National Parks and large 
areas of forest and bushland. We love that we are surrounded by wide open spaces 
and spectacular mountain landscapes. We enjoy the peace and quiet, our temperate 
climate with four distinct seasons, the fresh, unpolluted air and clear night skies.  
 
GOAL: the good health of our natural environment and biodiversity is 
preserved and enhanced.  
 

2 LOCAL ECONOMY  
Our solid local tourism industry is based on local attractions including three National 
Parks, Siding Spring Observatory and a range of tailored facilities and amenities. The 
contribution of our diverse agricultural industry is highly valued, made possible by 
good climate and rainfall, productive soils, clean water supplies and ready access to 
markets.  
 
We benefit from good transport links within the Shire and to external markets and 
customers and from an abundance of natural resources which provide our Shire with 
opportunities for local economic growth. We have diverse local employment and 
business opportunities and we have access to a wide range of trades, services and 
businesses that are locally owned and operated, providing personalised customer 
service. 
 
GOAL: our economy is strong and sustainable, providing our communities 
with localised employment opportunities and ease of access to markets, goods 
and services.  
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   Binnia Street, Coolah  

3 COMMUNITY AND CULTURE  
Our communities are strong, resilient and inclusive and provide support and 
assistance to those in need. Local volunteers contribute greatly to our community 
wellbeing and we enjoy the freedoms that are afforded through our safe, friendly and 
caring community. Our Shire is a great place to raise a family and we value the 
contributions and participation of our younger people who are provided opportunities 
to support their development. Relationships between our indigenous and non-
indigenous communities are harmonious and respectful and our diverse community 
is reflected through a wide range of arts and cultural activities, festivals and events. 
 
GOAL: the communities of our Shire are safe, harmonious and supportive and 
are bound by vibrant social and cultural interaction and a strong local identity.  
 
 

4 RURAL AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Our Shire is centrally located in NSW, within close proximity to regional centres and 
cities and we offer a range of affordable housing options. We enjoy a relaxed pace of 
life with low traffic volumes, no overcrowding and our urban centres are enhanced by 
the surrounding rural landscape and atmosphere. Our local history and heritage is 
visible in our towns and villages which are clean, tidy and well-presented. 
 
GOAL: our Shire is characterised by its peaceful rural landscape, its thriving 
towns and villages and diverse agricultural activities. 

 
 

5 RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE 
People within the Shire have opportunities to participate in a diverse range of locally 
based sports catering for people of all ages, activity levels and interests. Our rural 
setting provides children with opportunities to play in and explore their natural 
environment and our communities have easy access to a wide range of active and 
passive recreational pursuits through close proximity to National Parks and other 
open spaces. Organised sporting and recreational activities within the Shire are 
coordinated by an array of active clubs and volunteer organisations and Council 
provides communities across the Shire with well-maintained sporting facilities, parks 
and gardens. 
 
GOAL: the communities of our Shire have abundant opportunities to 
participate in sporting and recreational interests of their choice. 
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Recycling Centre, Coolah       Warrumbungles Way, Coolah 

 

6 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES  
We have a range of essential local services and facilities supporting the health, 
medical and aged care needs of our communities and we benefit from the local 
presence of State and Federal agencies and non-government organisations that 
provide a range of essential services. Local children and young people benefit from 
provision of high quality educational services and facilities. We have an array of 
public infrastructure, such as parks, libraries, community halls, swimming pools, 
sporting facilities and tourism amenities that are important for the prosperity and well-
being of our communities.  
 
Our towns benefit from the secure supply of potable water and our villages and rural 
areas have access to water from rainfall, rivers and artesian systems. Our Shire 
accommodates major road transport links that are of national importance for the 
movement of people and freight and Council maintains three aerodromes and an 
extensive network of roads and bridges that provide connections within the Shire and 
to other regional centres. We are also supported by volunteer emergency services 
that are critical in providing immediate accident and disaster response. 
 
GOAL: our communities are provided with safe, functional, and well-
maintained infrastructure and a comprehensive range of services.  

7 LOCAL GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE  
Our councillors represent the communities of the Shire well and work effectively 
together, taking their responsibilities as elected officials seriously. Council provides 
an appropriate range of services and facilities that are responsive to community 
needs and Council bases its activities and decision-making on principles of 
openness, transparency and accountability. Council maintains a visible presence 
across the Shire through decentralised offices, services and depot facilities.  
 
Council is the major employer within the Shire, providing a wide range of local 
training and employment opportunities and Council’s staff members are friendly and 
approachable and are an integral part of the communities of the Shire. Council is 
proactive in providing financial, staff and other resources to develop programs and 
services that support the well-being of its communities. 
 
GOAL: Warrumbungle Shire Council is recognised for its strong community 
leadership, sound financial and asset management, and ethical, accountable 
and responsive local government.  
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COUNCIL HIGHLIGHTS 
Warrumbungle Shire Council’s implementation of its Delivery Program through the 2019/20 
Operational Plan included the following highlights. 
 

NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 
 
Compliance Services 
Council has continued to provide information for the keeping of companion animals using 
social media posts and media releases. Education and regulations on barking dogs is an 
example of a social media post during 2019/20 financial year. 
 
Council’s Compliance Officers responded to a number of nuisance complaints relating to the 
keeping of animals including cattle, horses and roosters in urban areas. Officers also 
attended to complaints received about neglected or wandering goats, horses and cattle. 
Correspondence and Penalty Infringement Notices are issued on an as-needed basis. 
 
Council undertakes routine checks of overgrown properties to ensure the health and safety 
of all residents. Officers respond to complaints regarding overgrown private land in urban 
areas and issue correspondence and notices when needed. More frequent inspections are 
carried out after rain events and heading into fire season to ensure that grass is kept low to 
reduce the risk of fire. 
 
Noxious Weeds 
Council maintained membership to the Macquarie County Council which undertakes 
inspections and weed spraying on behalf of Council.  
 
Environmental Health Services 
Council’s Environmental Compliance Officer provided information for the Regional State of 
the Environment Report Snapshot. This project is in conjunction with a number of regional 
councils in the area. Council reported on a number of items including office consumables, 
fuel usage, development and roadworks. 
 
The Environmental Compliance Officer assists other branches within Council to achieve best 
practice environmental outcomes. Advice is given as required. 
 
Council implements actions from the strategic plan of the Central West Councils Salinity and 
Water Quality Alliance. Council is a member of the Alliance and implements what it can in 
line with Council’s projects. 
 

LOCAL ECONOMY 
 
Governance  
Developing strategic relationships with other levels of government is a Council objective in 
an effort to ensure that the Shire receives an equitable allocation of resources. Relationships 
with all levels of government have continued to be developed and maintained. Council is 
proactive in communication with various State and Federal Ministers and Members of 
Parliament, as well as with other councils. Although travel was impacted by COVID-19 in the 
second half of the reporting period, Members of Parliament have visited the area to attend 
events such as official openings. Council regularly cooperates with other councils and is a 
member of the Orana Joint Organisation of Councils.  
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The community has expressed that an important function of Council is to encourage and 
support local business and industry in creating local employment, and to advocate for long-
term creation and retention of high-quality services. Council is active in advocacy of local 
business and industry. In particular, Council has been involved with the Inland Rail project, 
which will pass through the northern end of the Shire. Support is also given to small business 
through engagement with the NSW Government Small Business Commissioner, hosting 
small business workshops and other events like the touring Small Business Bus, and 
meeting with various industry representatives.  
 
Private Works 
Council staff possesses a range of skills and are able to offer services to customers on a 
commercial basis. These services or private works are undertaken on an agreed fee for 
service basis and in accordance with rates published in the Fees and Charges section of the 
operational plan. The types of private works undertaken by staff include roadworks, slashing, 
mowing and minor concrete works. 
 
Tourism and Economic Development  
The Economic Development and Tourism Advisory Committee holds meetings every two 
months to discuss and put in place strategic regional initiatives.  
 
Council is working with Pandora Gallery, Coolah to further strengthen and support Coolah’s 
valuable Visitor Information Service at Pandora Gallery, and looking at Visitor Information 
initiatives in Dunedoo which are still in progress. 
 
Coonabarabran Visitor Information Centre (VIC) supplies and disseminates brochures and 
visitor’s information to operators throughout the shire and to neighbouring local government 
areas. Coonabarabran VIC has an extensive range of retail products, some of which are 
sourced locally. The staff and volunteers at both the Coonabarabran and Coolah VIC’s 
record visitors to the centres. This data is use to analyse the visitor economy to the region. 
 
Warrumbungle Region received recognition, being named as ‘best camping’ and ‘best place 
to view stars’ by renowned travel organisations such as Urban List. 
 
Tourism and Economic Promotion  
In the 2019/20 financial year local tourism campaigns and economic promotion included: 

• Astro tourism - Capture the Cosmos competition 

• Geo-trails app development 

• Installation of Shire boundary signs 

• Installation of Banner pole installation – shop local promotions 

• Council nominated ‘small business friendly’ 

• Council has facilitated ‘Upskilling Local Businesses’ including workshops, webinars 

and consultation. 

VIC staff also attended the Caravan and Camping shows in New South Wales to promote 

the Warrumbungle region and its tourist attractions.  

Community economic development is supported by Council along with the members of the 

Economic Development and Tourism Advisory Committee, the local community coordinators, 

Chambers of Commerce, Local Progress Associations, and their associated sub committees. 

Manager of Economic Development and Tourism has in the last twelve months established a 

network of government and business agencies to facilitate business development including 

Destination NSW, Business Connect business advisors, Regional Development Australia 
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(Orana) and Service NSW. Manager of Economic Development and Tourism updates the 

advisory committee each meeting on the Economic Development and Tourism Strategy 

action plan progress. 

Warrumbungle Quarry  
Council operated the hard rock quarry near Coonabarabran under a lease agreement with 
Boral during the year. The quarry produces aggregates for road sealing and local concrete 
production. The quarry is an important supplier of manufactured sand for the local building 
industry and the quarry is also a supplier of road base for road pavement construction.  Due 
to falling demand and a significant increase in the increased cost of production, the quarry 
operated at a loss during 2019/20 and a decision was taken to cease operations at the 
quarry on the 30 June 2020. Remaining stockpiles are to be used for Council ‘s own internal 
works until the lease period expires November 2020. 

COMMUNITY AND CULTURE 
 
Castlereagh Family Day Care 
Warrumbungle Shire Ordinary Council Meeting on 20 February 2020, resolved that Council 
would not be re-applying to recommence the provision of Castlereagh Family Day Care 
Services. It was resolved that Council surrender the Service approval from 27 March 2020. 
All educators in the Warrumbungle Local Government Area are now administrated from 
Gunnedah Family Day Care Service.  
 
Community Care  
Warrumbungle Community Care (WCC) provides a range of services across the Shire to 
assist the frail aged, people with a disability, and carers. Services include Community 
Transport, Meals on Wheels, Respite, Social Support and Home Maintenance. Service 
delivery is informed by the Quality Standards. Domain One: Dignity, respect, choice and 
complaints; Domain Two: Care planning and personal and clinical care; Domain Three: 
Lifestyle and service environment; and, Domain Four: Governance and Human Resources. 
WCC is now an Approved Home Care Package provider, and is a Registered Authorised 
NDIS provider. 

The range of service supports people to continue to live independently in their own homes. 
WCC provides services to almost 800 clients across the Shire. These services are provided 
by our dedicated team of six (6) permanent staff, eight (8) part time/casual staff and a team 
around 185 volunteers. 

In 2019/2020 financial year Warrumbungle Community Care provided the following services: 

Service Outputs 

Meals on Wheels 10,874 meals 

Social Support 6, 578 hours 

Respite 358 hours 

Home Maintenance 1,079 hours 

CHSP transport 7,616 trips 

NDIS Transport 272 trips 

CTP Transport 3,650 trips 
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Service Outputs 

HRT Transport 254 trips 

DVA Transport 90 trips 

Taxi Vouchers (CHSP, CTP,NDIS) 7,644 vouchers 

 
WCC has introduced a school-based trainee position to the Coonabarabran office for one 
day a week to provide a community based administrative development opportunity.  

Warrumbungle Community Care was the winner of the Meals on Wheels NSW Innovative 
Awards with their innovative “Voucher System and Food Partnership” during COVID 19. This 
initiative saw 18 food business partnerships developed across the shire with a strong focus 
on supporting local business. During COVID-19 over $45,000 was spent using meal 
vouchers on local meals and promotion and equipment.  

Community Development  
The role of Community Development Coordinator(s) includes seeking funding on behalf of 
their Community Development Group and/or Progress Association, and other Community 
Groups, providing support to locally based community groups and organisations to 
coordinate and promote local events, and to provide a point of contact for Council in local 
towns.  

In 2019/2020 the Community Development Coordinators once again had a highly successful 
year with a large amount of funding being sourced for programs, activities and infrastructure 
in our local towns totalling $2.2 million. A highlight of the Community Development program 
is the value-added support provided to other groups in each of their local communities to 
help them to also source funding to implement a range of activities, infrastructure or service 
delivery. The Coordinators came together for quarterly meetings and were supported in the 
secretarial function by Council’s Community Connections Officer. A greater collaboration 
between these roles has resulted in greater local benefits with the opening of the community 
hubs.  

 
School of Arts building, Coolah  

 
Connect Five Children’s Service 
Connect Five Children’s Services is externally funded by the NSW Department of Education 
and Communities. Connect Five Children’s Services provides play sessions to families with 
children not yet attending school in nine (9) communities across three (3) Shires – 
Warrumbungle, Coonamble and Gilgandra. 
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In 2019/2020 Connect Five Children’s Services provided 45 Play Sessions a term at nine (9) 
different venues. Attendances for 2019/2020 were 809. In lieu of face to face delivery, due to 
the impacts of COVID-19, staff developed the PADLET Remote Learning Hub and provided 
over 60 Family Activity Packs sent out by mail during COVID-19. 
 
As well as providing Play Sessions, Connect Five Children’s Services is also a Licensed 
Service and that provides Occasional Care for those who wish to attend an appointment, 
school, shopping or something else. Some parents also wish to give their child the 
opportunity to experience a childcare setting on their own for a short period in preparation for 
starting pre-school. Although this is a very small part of the Service it is greatly valued by 
those who use it, particularly in places where there is no childcare service. 
 
The other, very popular, part of the Service is the Mobile Toy Library. The Mobile Toy Library 
provides toys and equipment for enhancing children’s learning and development and may be 
borrowed at a Play Session or from the Office in Coonabarabran. Other agencies working 
with young children may also borrow from the Connect Five Children’s Services Toy Library. 
This is an essential service for isolated and disadvantaged families. We have had over 200 
toys borrowed from this service. 
 
Connect Five works with other agencies to support families with visits to play sessions from 
professionals such as nurses and occupational therapists. 
 
In addition to the core services, Connect Five Children’s Services also supports the Mobile 
Pre-school class run by Yuluwirri Kids. In 2019/2020 Monkey Room continued to be run 
under the Connect Five Children’s Services Licence with attendance levels of over 80%. 
 
Yuluwirri Kids Preschool and Long Day Care  
Yuluwirri Kids is a 57 licensed Preschool and Long Day Care Centre that opened on 2 
February, 2009. The Centre is funded by NSW Education and Communities for a maximum 
of 57 children a day. The Centre operates three (3) classrooms:  

• Panda Room for 0-2 years of age. This room can accommodate up to 11 long day 
care students a day.  

• Possum Room for 2-4 years of age. This room can accommodate up to 13 long day 
care students and 7 preschool students a day.  

• Giraffe Room for 3 – 5 years of age the year before children commence school. This 
room can accommodate up to six (6) long day care students and 20 preschool 
students each day.  

 
A fourth Mobile Preschool classroom operates two days a week on Wednesdays and 
Thursdays at Council’s Robertson Street Campus in Coonabarabran. This Mobile Preschool 
was established in February 2010, in conjunction with Connect Five Children’s Services 
license, to support Yuluwirri Kids waiting lists for three (3) to five (5) year old children who 
want to attend Preschool.  
 
Over the course of the year these combined services offer 14,350 places per annum. This 
equates to 325 places a week, 49 weeks a year of Long Day Care and 40 weeks a year of 
Preschool. Enrolment and attendance rates fluctuated in 2019/20, with 80-85% in terms 3 
and 4 of 2019, reducing to around 65% in Terms 1 and 2 of 2020. This reduction can be 
largely attributed to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, as enrolments generally build over 
the course of Term 1 (February to March).  
 
Community Connections Solutions Australia (CCSA) has been facilitating an assessment on 
access to preschool services with a view of establishing a business sustainability model to 
be implemented by Children Services in 2021/2022 so we can focus upon providing 
sustainable quality services to children. 
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Yuluwirri Kids Aboriginal Trainee completed Certificate 3 in Early Childhood in June 2020 
and was a co-winner of the Cr Pat Dixon Memorial Scholarship. This trainee was also a 
finalist in the NSW TAFE Trainee of the Year. Yuluwirri looks forward to this outstanding 
trainee mentoring future Aboriginal trainees and coordinating our Dhali Breakfast program for 
indigenous preschool children. 
 
The Yuluwirri Road Safety book initiative has been worked on over many years with 
members of staff being a driving force for this initiative. This early childhood innovation was 
nominated for the National Local Government Safety Award in 2020. 
 

 
    Yuluwirri Kids, Coonabarbaran  
 
Libraries  
Macquarie Regional Library (MRL) provides a range of services and collections to the 
communities across the Warrumbungle local government area. There is consistency in 
services and collections that are offered and a high level of support from MRL Regional 
Office in the programming and delivery of programs and services. The library provides 
services and collections at each of the three (3) libraries of Coolah, Coonabarabran, 
Dunedoo, and limited services to Baradine, Binnaway and Mendooran.  
 
In addition to regular borrowing and utilisation of the internet and other library facilities, local 
libraries offer a number of other activities in our local communities. The Library’s 2019/2020 
statistical results were affected by the closure of MRL branches due to COVID-19 pandemic 
circumstances.   
 
In 2019/20 MRL services once again included:  

• Maintenance of a service for housebound members and members in aged care 

• Involvement in celebration weeks such as Simultaneous Storytime, National Youth 
Week, Law Week, Library and Information Week 

• Promotion of events and activities in local towns. 

• School Holiday programs and activities. 

• Engagement with local schools, childcare, story time and homework sessions. 

• Regular reading and craft sessions. 

• Hosting meetings of local groups including local book clubs, craft groups and 
gardening groups. 

• Hosting information sessions and other activities for people of all ages. 
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Public Halls 
Council owns public halls in the following locations: Baradine, Mendooran, Coonabarabran, 
Dunedoo, Goolhi, Binnaway, Coolah and Purlewaugh. The Coonabarabran Sport and 
Recreation building is also categorised as a hall for reporting purposes. The cost of 
maintaining these halls during 2019/20 totalled $0.18m. 
 
The halls are available for hire and activities. The halls in Coolah, Baradine, & Purlewaugh 
are managed by volunteer groups. 
 

 
     Memorial Hall, Baradine 
 
Youth Services  
The Targeted Early Intervention Youth Services activities in 2019/2020 consisted of: 

• The establishment of community hubs in each of the six towns across the Shire. 
• The establishment of the innovative Goose Chase as an interactive IT partnership 

with Dark Skies. 
• Innovation in lieu of face to face National Youth Week activities due to the impact of 

COVID-19. 
• The skatepark mural work in Coonabarabran at the Peter Crystal Park as a 

collaborative partnership of the Coonabarabran Interagency groups YARN (Youth 
Suicide Prevention), McKillop and Centacare Services and Rotary. 

• The annual footy game in Mendooran between Police, Youth and teachers. 
• Further development in the Youth Strategic Plan, with a number of youth 

consultations that informed. 
• The planning for a range of youth leadership development activities to be 

implemented in 2020/2021 with the Leadership Academy and Civic Citizenship 
Initiative workshops. 

• Support for other service providers and secretarial support for the Community 
Development Coordinators.  

 
The Youth Development Program continued to actively engage and empower the youth of 
our Shire through a variety of programs, activities and initiatives under the Department of 
Justice and Communities Community Builders Program, (previously Department of Family 
and Community Services). The Targeted Earlier Intervention (TEI) Program has successfully 
transitioned to replace the former Youth Development Program. This TEI Program is directed 
at improving connections across the Shire and through a variety of service providers utilising 
the Community Hub structures as now established in each town on a fortnightly basis. 
 
Strong partnerships and collaborations continued through the ongoing support of local 
agencies, organisations, schools and community groups ensuring 50 community events and 
activities were provided across the Shire for 1300 young people.  
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Compliance Services 
Council maintains Alcohol Free Zones throughout the urban areas of the Shire. Compliance 
Officers undertake regular inspections to ensure the Alcohol-Free Zone signage is current 
and in the correct position. Signs are replaced if they are old or unreadable.  
 
Drafting of an outdoor dining policy has been underway and will be finalised in 2020/21 
financial year. 
 

RURAL AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

 
Building Control  
Building and Plumbing inspections were carried out by Council’s Contract Building Certifier 
and Council’s Building Certifier throughout the year ensuring that the current standard and 
legislative requirements have been met. Council’s Building Certifier inspects buildings to 
certify that all building works meet the requirements of the National Construction Code. 
 
Town Planning  
Council is undertaking a review of the Warrumbungle Shire Local Environmental Plan which 
will incorporate new land zonings and the proposed bypass corridor. Council is currently 
undertaking a review of the Section 94A (7.12) Contribution Plan which includes the 
schedule of works throughout the Shire for money received from the Contribution Plan.  
 
Compliance 
Councils contractor Building Certifier along with Council’s Compliance Officers have 
undertaken inspections on swimming pool barriers for houses that are for sale or rent. A 
number of pool barriers failed inspections and works were required before a compliance 
certificate could be issued. 
 
Horticulture  
Council owns and maintains 19 park areas throughout the Shire and there are eight (8) sets 
of playground equipment. Some of the maintenance activities in these areas include: grass 
cutting, watering, weeding, tree pruning, amenities cleaning and maintenance, monitoring 
and maintenance of playground equipment, and general horticultural tasks associated with 
numerous garden beds. The annual cost of parks and gardens maintenance activities in 
2019/20 was $0.28m. 
 

 
   Milling Park, Dunedoo 
 
 



 
Warrumbungle Shire Council 2019/20 Annual Report 

Page 23 

Street Cleaning  
Council owns and operates a street sweeper that sweeps gutters in each of the six towns 
within the Shire. Working on a three-week schedule, gutters are swept in accordance with 
the following schedule; Coonabarabran 3 days a week, 0.5 days per week in Coolah and 
Dunedoo and 0.3 days per week in Baradine, Binnaway & Mendooran. The cost of street 
cleaning in 2019/20 was $0.28m. 
 
Public Amenities  
There are 12 public toilets throughout the Shire that are owned and maintained by Council.  
The toilets generally opened at dawn and closed at dusk, however there are some toilets 
that are opened 24 hours 7 days a week. The toilets are cleaned at various times during the 
week, a total of 70 times each week. The cost to clean and maintain these toilets in 2019/20 
was $0.30m. 
 
Town Streets  
There are six urban areas in the Warrumbungle Shire local government area: Baradine, 
Coonabarabran, Binnaway, Coolah, Dunedoo, and Mendooran. Within these areas there is a 
total of 139km of roads. Some of the maintenance activities carried out by Council for these 
roads include emptying of street bins, street garden and tree maintenance, stormwater 
infrastructure maintenance and cleaning, and road and footpath maintenance. The total cost 
of these maintenance activities in 2019/20 was $0.80m. 
 
Projects associated with renewal of town street assets that occurred during the year include 
renewal of road pavement in Crane Street and renewal of kerb and guttering in John Street 
Coonabarabran. There was 6km of resealing completed on town streets at a cost $0.15m. 
 
Projects associated with new works in town streets include construction of a concrete shared 
pathway in Cowper Street and Cassilis Street in Coonabarabran; construction of an 
underground stormwater drainage system in Dunedoo; stormwater drainage works in Cobra 
Street Mendooran and construction of small median island in Binnia Street, Coolah. 
 
 

 
Renshaw Street, Binnaway 
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Village Streets  
Mowing, maintenance grading and tree maintenance was undertaken in the streets of 
villages across the Shire including; Kenebri, Bugaldie, Ulamambri, Merrygoen, Neilrex, 
Uarbry and Leadville. The cost of maintaining streets in the villages in 2019/20 was $25,000. 
 

RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE 
 
Ovals and other Sporting Facilities  
Across the Shire there is an oval complex in each town and there are tennis courts in 
Coonabarabran, Binnaway, Baradine, Mendooran and Coolah. The predominant 
maintenance activities at each oval include irrigation, mowing, line marking and cleaning up 
after football events. The annual cost of maintenance and operations during 2019/20 was 
$0.42m. 
 
There were significant renewal and improvement projects completed during 2019/20 
including: 

• New oval lighting at Baradine and Binnaway 

• New skate park at Baradine 

• New shade shelter over Coonabarabran skate park 

• Replacement of perimeter fence at Coonabarabran. 

Skate Park, Coonabarabran                 Skate Park, Baradine 
 
Pools  
Council owns and operates a public pool complex in each of the six towns within the Shire.  
The 2019/20 season was particularly challenging due to a shortage of Pool Attendants which 
meant that some pools were closed in February and March. There were 41,000 visits to 
pools across the Shire, which is a reduction in attendance numbers compared to previous 
years. The nett operating cost of the pools was $0.59m. 
 
All of the pools except for Coolah and Mendooran are over 50 years old and they are 
experiencing chronic maintenance issues particularly in relation to pumps, filter equipment 
and water leakage. Renewal works during the year included leak repair at Baradine Pool, 
removal of trees and Coonabarabran Pool and installation of a shade shelter. The installation 
of a new electronic key access system was undertaken in the off season.   
 
Compliance Services 
Compliance Officers undertake inspections to ensure private pools meet the requirements of 
pool safety legislation. Inspections are carried out upon request and compliance certificates 
are issued for complying barrier fences. 
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PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 
 
Aerodromes  
There are registered aerodromes at Coolah and Coonabarabran, and there is an 
unregistered aerodrome at Baradine. Maintenance tasks undertaken by Council include 
grass slashing, weekly inspections and maintenance of the bitumen surface on the runway at 
Coonabarabran. The annual cost of aerodrome maintenance in 2019/20 was $100,000. 
 
Significant renewal works were undertaken during 2019/20 at Coonabarabran aerodrome 
with the resurfacing of the bitumen runway and aprons at a cost of $316,000. Resurfacing of 
the unsealed runway at Baradine was also completed at a cost of $45,000. Also, the turning 
area on the eastern end of the Baradine Aerodrome was bitumen sealed at a cost of 
$15,000. 
 

 
     Aerodrome, Baradine 
 
Emergency Services Management 
The Local Emergency Management Committee was not activated in response to any 
emergency during 2019/20, however the Committee met on four occasions throughout the 
year. The meetings were well attended with representatives from; NSW Police, Fire & 
Rescue NSW, Rural Fire Service, Ambulance, State Emergency Service, Volunteer Rescue 
Authority and from the Regional Emergency Management Committee. 
 

Council participates in the Bush Fire Management Committee which prepares plans for 
managing bush fire risks. The Committee also documents fire-trails within the shire, which 
assists agencies in applying for funding to maintain fire-trails within the National Parks and 
also State Forest areas.  
 
Local Roads and Infrastructure  
Council is responsible for maintaining and making improvements to 2,276km of local rural 
roads, of which 450km are sealed. Council is also responsible for 385km of regional main 
roads. 
 
Council also undertakes roadworks under contract for Transport for New South Wales 
(TfNSW) on 186km of state roads, including sections of the Golden Highway, Newell 
Highway and Castlereagh Highway.  Expenditure on these roads by Council during 2019/20 
was $1.35m. 
 
The renewal of bitumen seal on local rural roads during the period included 19km bitumen 
resurfacing at a cost of $0.36m. There was 21km of bitumen resurfacing works undertaken 
on various regional main roads throughout the Shire at a cost of $0.46m.   
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During the period 409km of maintenance grading was undertaken on unsealed roads across 
the Shire at a cost of $1.3m. The length of road graded during 2019/20 is well down on the 
target length of 550km and this was due to the flood events that occurred in February, March 
and April. The cost of emergency works and some restoration works undertaken on the 
roads that were damaged as a result of the flood events was $0.73m. 
 
The expenditure on maintenance activities associated with sealed local rural roads was 
$0.33m and includes activities such as pothole patching, mowing of roadside grass and 
repair of drainage structures.  
 
Council is committed to renewing road assets to maximise remaining life and provide 
acceptable standard of service for road users. Renewal projects on road assets in 2019/20 
were many and varied including the following: 

• Sealed pavement renewal on Coolah Creek Rd, Neilrex Rd and Black Stump Way. 

• Renewal of unsealed roads were undertaken through gravel resheeting on the 
following roads: Berdeen Rd, Cumbil Rd, Gowang Rd, Hollymount Rd, Leaders Rd, 
Maranoa Rd, Uphills Rd, Coybil Rd, Wardens Rd, & Boltons Ck Rd. 

• Shoulder reconstruction and pavement widening works were undertaken on the 
following roads: Purlewaugh Rd, Black Stump Way and Forest Rd. 

 
Improvements to the road network were undertaken through the following roadwork projects: 

• New bridges over Billy Kings Creek 1 and Billy Kings Creek 2. 

• 600 metres of new bitumen seal on Munns Road. 
 

 
      Billy Kings Creek Bridge Project 
 
Medical Facilities 
Council owns buildings in Coonabarabran, Mendooran and Dunedoo that are leased for 
provision of medical services.  These premises were maintained and met the professional 
service level expected by the medical practitioners operating in each of the buildings. 
 
A Council owned house in Coolah that was rented for several years by a visiting Doctor was 
vacated during the year.   
 
Warrumbungle Waste  
Council provided and maintained the landfill site at Coonabarabran with transfer stations 
located in Baradine, Binnaway, Coolah, Dunedoo, Mendooran and Ulamambri.  
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Warrumbungle Waste continued the weekly general waste collection and fortnightly recycling 
collection for residents throughout the Shire for residents who pay for the collection.  
 
A review of Warrumbungle Waste was undertaken with changes being implemented in the 
2020/21 financial year. The changes include infrastructure being installed at Ulamambri 
Transfer Station for residents to dispose of rubbish and the reduction in opening hours. 
Commercial recycling is also being looked at to ensure the health and safety of Council staff 
as the current woolpacks used for commercial recycling may present WHS issues. 
 
Coonabarabran Landfill and Dunedoo Transfer Station are both Container Deposit Stations 
with people travelling from other shires to deposit containers for the 10c refund.  Council is 
currently ranked second in the State for the number of containers deposited, which means 
less plastic and glass is being disposed of into landfill. 
 
A waste management strategy will be developed to establish the current use and future use 
of the Coonabarabran Landfill Site during the 2020/21 financial year. 
 

 
Coolah Waste Transfer Station 
 
Warrumbungle Water and Sewer  
Council provides potable water services to residents in Baradine, Binnaway, Bugaldie, 
Coolah, Coonabarabran, Dunedoo, Kenebri and Mendooran; non-potable services to 
residents in Merrygoen and along the raw water feed main in Timor Road, Coonabarabran. 
In all there are 3319 service connections. To provide these services, there are 23 
groundwater bores, four (4) river wells, one (1) dam, one (1) weir, four (4) water treatment 
plants, 23 reservoirs including treatment plant clear water tanks and 169 km of water mains 
including head works, transfer and reticulation mains. 
 
To improve water security, the reservoirs at Kenebri were replaced; Martin Street reservoir in 
Coolah has been refurbished; Timor Dam and Poundyard Weir in Coonabarabran were 
dredged; and 800 water meters were replaced Shire-wide. To improve water quality and 
security, the funded Coolah Water Supply Scheme and Shire-wide Water Supply Systems 
Automation Upgrade Scoping Studies commenced; the Mendooran Water Supply Upgrade 
Concept Design progressed; 1.7 km of old water mains were replaced; 1 km of new water 
mains were installed; and 5 dead ends in the reticulation systems were removed. To improve 
water safety, 3 old bores were capped; the integrity of 6 reservoirs was restored through 
repair works; and the filter control at the Coonabarabran Water Treatment Plant has been 
upgraded. The feasibility study for the raising of the Timor Dam wall, the Baradine Water 
Treatment Plant Upgrade, the SCADA and Telemetry Network Upgrade and the 
improvements to the water meter reading operation are all in progress. 
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Sewage services are provided to residents in Baradine, Coolah, Coonabarabran and 
Dunedoo. In all, there are 1418 connections. Infrastructure to support these connections 
includes nine (9) pumping stations, four (4) sewage treatment plants and 83 km of sewer 
main. 
 
In 2019/20, 75 vacuum pots in Baradine were refurbished by replacing the internal valves 
and controllers; one vacuum pump at the Baradine sewage pump station was replaced; nine 
(9) manhole junctions were repaired and sealed in Coonabarabran; and Shire-wide pump 
station inspections were performed resulting in several pump removals for repair and 
replacement. The Dunedoo and Coonabarabran Sewage Treatment Plant Upgrade Concept 
Designs started and progressed, and the scoping study in Mendooran to install sewage 
services in this currently un-sewered township is being finalised. 
 
Environmental Health Services 
Assessment and inspections are carried out on all new applications for on-site sewage 
management systems (OSSMS). Staff have undergone training to ensure that the 
assessment and inspections are carried out in accordance with the current standards. 
Existing OSSMS are inspected as required on an ad-hoc basis. 
 
Compliance 
Council Compliance Officers responded to seven (7) reported Stock on Road complaints. 
Compliance Officers are quick to respond and are usually on site within one (1) hour 
depending on the location of the stock. Council has purchased signage to warn motorist of 
stock on the road to ensure the safety of both the stock and staff members who are on site.  

 
LOCAL GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE 
 
Customer Service 
During the reporting period, Customer Service staff met the following targets:  

• Annual Report, Agency Information Guide and statutory documentation prepared as 
required. 

• Correspondence and reports prepared as required. 

• In the report period, 13,217 documents were registered in InfoXpert, Council’s 
Document, Records and Content Management System. 

 
A school-based trainee was introduced into Customer Service at the Coonabarabran office, 
expanding on opportunities previously provided to young people in the community. 
 
Cemetery Services  
Council manages and maintains 12 cemeteries across the Shire.  Activities include 
management of a database of interments, liaison with Funeral Directors, excavation of burial 
sites, and maintenance of grounds and fences at each cemetery.  The nett cost of Cemetery 
Services in 2019/20 was $94,000.   
 
Communications and IT 
Communications released to keep the community informed of Council activities increased by 
around 25% over the previous 12-month period. The Community e-Newsletter was launched 
in September 2019 and currently has a monthly reach of around 500 people. A variety of 
communications methods are used, including traditional print media, website, social media, 
posters and letter box drops. Council’s social media presence increased during the reporting 
period, with an audience increase of 33%.  
 
Council relies on a robust IT network to allow staff access across a large geographical area. 
IT capital projects have been in line with the Delivery Program and include installation of free 
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wi-fi to towns throughout the local government area and software licensing. A new computer 
operating environment, the Remote Desktop Server, was built during the reporting period 
ahead of rollout to the organisation. 
 
Design Services Management  
There is a small team in Technical Services that provide technical support across the 
Council organisation.  In particular the design team investigates, designs and prepares 
drawings for roadworks, drainage works, kerbing and guttering and footpath works.  The 
team also provides rural road addressing services across the Shire and GIS services to the 
organisation.  The design team is also active in preparing funding submissions for road 
projects, particularly projects under the State Government’s Fixing Country Roads program, 
Safer Roads Program and Active Transport Program. 
 

 
   John Street, Coonabarabran 
 
Environment and Development Management  
Council is undertaking a review of its Local Environmental Plan to ensure that zoning is 
correct and reflects the needs of the community and surrounding agricultural land to ensure 
fragmentation of agricultural planning does not occur. Council received a total of 59 
Development Applications which were assessed within the legislative requirements.  
Council processed 388 planning certificates throughout the 2019/20 year, with all certificates 
checked for accuracy by the Town Planner and sent within required timeframes.  
 
Building Certificates were assessed and inspected accurately and processed in a timely 
manner. Council’s Certifiers assessed a total of four (4) Complying Development Certificates 
throughout the 2019/2020 financial year. As not all applications can be complying 
development the number is down from previous years.  
 
Council’s Environmental Compliance Officer commenced inspections on food shops to 
ensure that all businesses within the Shire were meeting the requirements of the NSW 
Public Health order in relation to the number of people, hygiene and social distancing rules. 
However, inspections ceased with the COVID-19 pandemic and will recommence in the 
2020/21 financial year. 
 
Financial Services 
The 2019/20 financial year was a busy year for Council’s Finance branch working through 
changes in structure, process and taking on new responsibilities. As well as this, Finance 
provided extended support for the interim and external audits.  
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Council’s result is higher than last year mainly due to sale proceeds of Council’s share in 
Southern Phone Company Limited in 2019/20 and impairment of Three Rivers Regional 
Retirement Community (TRRRC) works in 2018/19. Council is set to record a good result in 
2019/20, due to the efforts of our good people in Technical Services, Environment and 
Development, and other staff who secured excellent grant funding for the Warrumbungle 
community and completed over $14m in capital works. The result was further boosted by the 
pre-payment of the first two quarters of the 2020/21 Financial Assistance Grant being made 
in 2019/20.  
 
Whilst the Fit for the Future assessment by the Office of Local Government is officially over, 
it does not mean that Council is not being monitored and measured against these 
benchmarks. So, although Council received $4.2m in capital grants it is wise to recognise 
that these types of funds cannot be relied upon year on year and that Council needs to 
review robustly its way forward financially.  
 
The ability of Council to adjust for the possibility of falling grant income is limited to 
increasing revenue from user charges and other services, coupled with a preparedness of 
expenditure reductions through a combination of efficiencies and service reductions.  
 
There were some significant achievements made by Council’s Finance branch in the 
financial year, including: completion of Council’s 2019/20 financial statements and 
lodgement by the statutory deadlines; continued improvement in reporting for RMS 
contracted works; and completion of all other Integrated Planning and Reporting 
requirements, including the re-casting of Council’s Long Term Financial Plan and Delivery 
Program Plan. Furthermore, there were no WHS incidents or lost time to injuries in Financial 
Services during the 2019/20 financial year. 
 
Organisation Development 
Council’s turnover remained steady at 11.32% in 2019/2020, comparable to the 11.5% 
average for all NSW councils in 2018/2019. In 2019/2020 Council staff had an average 
tenure of 10.19 years, which is on par with the 9.82 years average for all NSW councils the 
previous year. 
 
COVID-19 impacted a range of Council operations in the last quarter, with a number of new 
procedures and processes introduced to assist in managing the risks associated with the 
pandemic. The uncertainties surrounding the impacts of COVID-19 also affected Council’s 
recruitment in the latter half of the financial year, delaying the recruitment of some positions. 
 
Council’s sick leave decreased by 11.7% in 2019/2020, a cumulative improvement of 26.3% 
over the last two financial years. Council delivered flu vaccinations in early May 2020, with a 
higher uptake by staff than in previous years. 
 
There was a 30.75% increase on the previous year’s lost time injury hours due to workplace 
injuries that resulted in significant time away from work for a small number of staff. Council 
continued to focus attention on getting injured workers back to the workplace as part of its 
Recover at Work program, as staff recover more quickly at work. Council is working to 
reinvigorate safety in the workplace, with Due Diligence training delivered to management 
and supervisory staff and the WHS committee undertaking WHS consultation and 
inspections.  
 
The first stage of implementing of Council’s new online WHS incident and management 
reporting system (Vault) was brought forward as part of the COVID-19 measures, to allow 
staff to report incidents and observations online in a timely manner and also eliminating the 
paper handling that was previously required. 
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Council commenced a three-year Employee Engagement Program in early 2019/2020. The 
program includes an annual staff survey, followed by quarterly action plans being prepared 
and actioned by each department based on feedback from staff. Some early actions included 
purchasing equipment that allowed staff to achieve better outcomes, and a direction for more 
time in the field by management to improve internal communication. COVID-19 prevented 
planned staff events during April however these were rescheduled for later in 2020. 
 
Council continues to support local youth through its apprentice and traineeship programs, 
appointing two School-Based trainees (SBTs) in Community Services and Corporate 
Services at Coonabarabran in early 2020, in addition to the remaining three SBTs who 
commenced in 2019. Council also employees two trainees in Children’s Services and one 
trainee in Warrumbungle Water, and has Apprentice Plumber positions at Coonabarabran 
and Coolah. 
 
Property Management  
Council’s property portfolio, excluding public halls and medical centres, includes two (2) 
administration offices, nine (9) residential houses, three (3) preschools and a range of 
community buildings.  
 
The cost of maintaining and operating these properties in 2019/20 was $0.56m. Council has 
management responsibility for 71 Crown Reserves.  Expenditure on these Reserves in 
2019/20 was minimal.  The development of a formal Plan of Management for each Crown 
Reserve that commenced in the previous year, continued as a project in 2019/20. 
 
Fleet Services  
To support its wide range of services, Council operates workshops in Coolah and 
Coonabarabran. The mechanics in these workshops provide maintenance and support 
services for a large fleet of vehicles including 86 sedans and utilities, eight (8) graders, three 
(3) loaders, three (3) excavators, four (4) backhoes, seven (7) rollers, seven (7) tractors, five 
(5) large tippers, 23 medium sized trucks, two (2) garbage trucks and one (1) street sweeper. 
The total cost associated with operations and maintenance of these vehicles for the year 
was $2.7m. 
 
Council workshops and mechanics also provide maintenance and registration services to 81 
trucks and vehicles used by the Rural Fire Service. 
 
The fleet replacement program was extensive with the following items being replaced: 18 
vehicles in the light vehicle fleet, backhoe, 4-tonne excavator, grader, two (2) rollers, front 
end loader, 5-tonne truck, four (4) x 10-tonne trucks, two (2) dog trailers, street sweeper, 
tractor and out-front mower. The nett cost of replacing these vehicles and plant items in 
2019/20 was $1.9m.   
 
Risk Management 
Risk mitigation throughout the year includes membership of StateWide Mutual, providing 
access to regional insurance and risk management support. Programs undertaken were the 
Continuous Improvement Pathways workbooks and Enterprise Risk Management 
workshops. Regionally, Council participates in the Orana Risk and Safety Management 
Group. The organisation’s Business Continuity Plan was enacted in March 2020 in response 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
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FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT 
 

 2020 

$ ’000 

2019 

$ ’000 

   

Income Statement   

Total income from continuing operations 43,046 43,515 

Total expenses from continuing operations 40,786 42,877 

Operating result from continuing operations 2,260 638 

   

Net operating result for the year 2,260 638 

   

Net operating result before grants and contributions 
provided for capital purposes 

(1,515) (5,248) 

   

Statement of Financial Position   

Total current assets 24,690 22,086 

Total current liabilities (8,948) (7,279) 

Total non-current assets 551,335 499,831 

Total non-current liabilities (6,256) (7,045) 

Total equity 560,821 507,593 

   

Other financial information   

Unrestricted current ratio (times) 2.95 4.37 

Operating performance ratio (%) (5.59)% (17.10)% 

Debt service cover ratio (times) 10.30 5.05 

Rates and annual charges outstanding ratio (%) 10.93% 10.07% 

   

Infrastructure renewals ratio (%) 48.80% 53.48% 

   

Own source operating revenue ratio (%) 53.08% 47.51% 

Cash expense cover ratio (months) 7.74 6.97 
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DELIVERY PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION 
Within 5 months after the end of each year, a council must prepare a report (its “annual 
report”) for that year reporting as to its achievements in implementing its delivery program 
and the effectiveness of the principal activities undertaken in achieving the objectives at 
which those principal activities are directed. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Council’s achievements in implementing its Delivery Program 2019/20 are detailed above at 
‘Council Highlights’. 

AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS 
A copy of the council’s audited financial reports prepared in accordance with the Local 
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting published by the 
Department, as in force from time to time. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Copies of Council’s financial statements are provided as attachments to this Annual Report 
(Attachments 1-3). 

RATES AND CHARGES WRITTEN OFF 
The Council’s Annual Report must include the amount of rates and charges written off during 
the year. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Rates and charges written off by Warrumbungle Shire Council in 2019/20: 
 

Description Amount ($) 

Rates 0 

Water charges 0 

OVERSEAS VISITS 
Details (including the purpose) of overseas visits undertaken during the year by councillors, 
council staff or other persons while representing the council (including visits sponsored by 
other organisations). 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Councillors and Staff were not involved in any overseas travel during the year. 
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PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF 

FACILITIES TO COUNCILLORS 
Details of the total cost during the year of the payment of the expenses of, and the provision 
of facilities to, councillors in relation to their civic functions (as paid by the council, 
reimbursed to the councillor or reconciled with the councillor), including separate details on 
the total cost of each of the following: 
 

(i) the provision during the year of dedicated office equipment allocated to councillors on 
a personal basis, such as laptop computers, mobile telephones and landline 
telephones and facsimile machines installed in councillors’ homes (including 
equipment and line rental costs and internet access costs but not including call 
costs); 
 

(ii) telephone calls made by councillors, including calls made from mobile telephones 
provided by the council and from landline telephones and facsimile services installed 
in councillors’ homes; 

(iii) the attendance of councillors at conferences and seminars; 
 

a. the provision of induction training for councillors, supplementary induction 
training for mayors and professional development programs for mayors and 
other councillors; 

 
(iv) other training of mayors and councillors and the provision of skill development for 

mayors and councillors; 
 

(v) interstate visits undertaken during the year by councillors while representing the 
council, including the cost of transport, the cost of accommodation and other out-
of-pocket travelling expenses; 

 

(vi) overseas visits undertaken during the year by councillors while representing the 
council, including the cost of transport, the cost of accommodation and other out-
of-pocket travelling expenses; 

 

(vii) the expenses of any spouse, partner (whether of the same or opposite sex) or 
other person who accompanied a councillor in the performance of his or her civic 
functions, being expenses payable in accordance with the Guidelines for the 
payment of expenses and the provision of facilities for Mayors and Councillors for 
Local Councils in NSW prepared by the Director-General from time to time; 

 

(viii) expenses involved in the provision of care for a child of, or an immediate family 
member of, a councillor, to allow the councillor to undertake his or her civic 
functions. 

 
Councillor Fees 

Description Amount ($) 

Election expenses 0 

Mayor 26,530 

Councillors (8) 106,740 
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Councillor Allowances  

Description Amount ($) 

Travel and accommodation 16,720.00 

Meal allowance 1,829.00 

Provision of dedicated office equipment 1,855.95 

Telephone charges 1,078.05 

Attendance at conferences and seminars 19,611.00 

Training and provision of skill development 700.00 

Interstate visits, including transport, 

accommodation and other out of pocket 

travelling expenses 

0 

Overseas visits, including transport, 

accommodation and other out of pocket 

travelling expenses 

0 

Expenses of any spouse, partner or other 

person who accompanied a Councillor 

0 

Expenses involved in the provision of care 

for a child or an immediate family member 

0 

Other allowances – subscriptions and 

publications 

13,496.00 

Total 55,290.00 
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CONTRACTS AWARDED 
Details of each contract awarded by the council during that year (whether as a result of 
tender or otherwise) other than: 
 

(i) employment contracts (that is, contracts of service but not contracts for services), and 
 

(ii) contracts for less than $150,000 or such other amount as may be prescribed by the 
regulations, 

 
including the name of the contractor, the nature of the goods or services supplied by the 
contractor and the total amount payable to the contractor under the contract. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Contractor Goods/Services Amount ($) 

BMR Quarries 
Screening and crushing at 

Warrumbungle Quarry 
784,500  

(incl GST) 

BMR Quarries Pty Ltd 
Design and construction of bitumen 

reseal at Coonabarabran Airport 
330,114.00  
(incl GST) 

Cadia Group Pty Ltd Plumbing and sewer parts 218,730.74 

Colas NSW Pty Ltd 
Supply of bitumen sealing services to 

Council 
573,527.99 

Department of Planning 
Industry and Environment 

Valuation fees and compulsory 
acquisition of land – Coonabarabran 

Visitor Information Centre 
260,317.41 

Flovac Vacuum Sewerage 
Systems 

Refurbishment of vacuum pots in 
Baradine 

253,495 

Guy Andrews Electrical 
Binnaway Oval and Baradine Oval 

lighting upgrade 
599,971  

(incl GST) 

Guy Andrews Electrical Miscellaneous electrical works 218,496 

Holcim (Australia) Pty Ltd t/a 
Humes 

Supply and delivery of concrete 
pipes 

241,654.93 

Hollis Agricultural Welding Casual Plant Hire 252,071.00 

Hunter H2O 
Dunedoo and Coonabarabran sewer 

treatment plant upgrades concept 
designs 

287,890.90  
(incl GST) 

 

Liberty Rural T/as West ‘n’ 
Owens 

Fuel supply 916,579.46 

M & I Plant Casual plant hire 243,944.34 

Macquarie Regional Library Regional Library Services 658,780.56 

Origin Energy Electricity supply 441,954.37 

Roads and Maritime Services Line marking 333,113.73 

Saunders Civilbuild Pty Ltd 
Design and construct Billy Kings 

Creek bridges 
1,105,260.53  

(incl GST) 

State Cover Mutual Ltd Insurance – Workers Compensation 668,691.58 

Statewide Mutual Ltd Insurance 825,920.62 

Tamworth Regional Council 

Provision of information technology 
(IT) services to Warrumbungle Shire 
Council (Agreement for Support and 
Maintenance – IT End User Support) 

234,440.30 

Taylor Automotive Group Plant purchases and parts 613,373.25 

Tracserv Pty Ltd Plant purchases and parts 808,534.77 

Vincent Young Legal fees 649,064.56 

WesTrac Pty Ltd 

Purchase one (1) Caterpillar 140 
Articulated Motor Grader with Sitech 
Trimble CB450 control box, and that 
Council sell plant item number 107 to 

WesTrac Pty Ltd 

435,997.50  
(incl GST) 
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Contractor Goods/Services Amount ($) 

WesTrac Pty Ltd 

Purchase one (1) Caterpillar 432F 
Backhoe Loader with hydraulic side 
shift, and that Council sell plant item 

number 83 to WesTrac Pty Ltd 
 

199,913.75  
(incl GST) 

 

WesTrac Pty Ltd 

Purchase one (1) Caterpillar CS68B 
Smooth Drum Roller with compaction 

meter, and that Council sell plant 
item number 111 to WesTrac Pty Ltd 

 

170,500.00  
(incl GST) 

 

WesTrac Pty Ltd 

Purchase one (1) Caterpillar CS68B 
Smooth Drum Roller with compaction 

meter, and that Council sell plant 
item number 112 to WesTrac Pty Ltd 

 

170,500.00  
(incl GST) 

 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
A summary of the amounts incurred by the council during the year in relation to legal 
proceedings taken by or against the council (including amounts, costs and expenses paid or 
received by way of out of court settlements, other than those the terms of which are not to be 
disclosed) and a summary of the state of progress of each legal proceeding and (if it has 
been finalised) the result. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Matter and Court Court 
Amount 
incurred 

2019/20 ($) 

Status – Progress 
or Outcome 

WSC v Ou  
Land & Environment Court 

(Proceedings No. 
2017/286656) 

 

Land & Environment 
Court 

(Proceedings No. 
2017/286656) 

 

2,749.00 

Debt recovery 
proceedings for 

amount awarded by 
Court 

Monkton v WSC 
Local Court  
(Case No. 

2018/00359830) 
5,671.12 Ongoing 

 
Boulus Constructions P/L v 

WSC 
Supreme Court of NSW 

(Proceedings No. 
2018/00340246) 

Supreme Court of NSW 
(Proceedings No. 
2018/00340246) 

 

649,064.56 Ongoing 
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PRIVATE WORKS 
Details or a summary (as required by section 67(3) of the Act) of resolutions made during 
that year under section 67 of the Act concerning work carried out on private land and details 
or a summary of such work if the cost of the work has been fully or partly subsidised by the 
council, together with a statement of the total amount by which the council has subsidised 
any such work during that year. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
There were no resolutions made in relation to Private Works, as required under section 67 
and there no private works fully or partly subsidised by Council during 2019/20.  

CONTRIBUTIONS 
The total amount contributed or otherwise granted under section 356 of the Act. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Organisation Name Total Value ($) 

Baradine Central School  200.00 

Coonabarabran Golf Club  2,948.00 

Orana Arts Inc  2,000.00 

Binnaway Tennis Club Inc  400.00 

Coolah Historical Arts Tour  500.00 

Coolah Youth & Community Centre  500.00 

Mendooran Bowling Club Ltd  500.00 

Dunedoo Preschool Kindergarden  500.00 

Dunedoo & District Historical Society & Museum Inc  500.00 

Dunedoo & District Development Group  500.00 

Warrumbungle Domestic Violence Committee  500.00 

Dunedoo Amateur Swimming Club  500.00 

Coonabarabran Junior Rugby League and Netball Club  1,374.49 

Mendooran Merrygoen Amateur Swimming Club  500.00 

Coolah Sacred Heart Primary School  70.00 

Coolah Central School 500.00 

2357 Partnerships Incorporated 500.00 

Mendooran Youth Group 500.00 

Coonabarabran Soccer Club 300.00 

Creatives Collective ARI Inc. 500.00 

Coonabarabran Military & Civilian Rifle Club 500.00 

Coonabarabran Volunteer Rescue Association 500.00 

Baradine PA & H Association  50.00 

St Michaels Dunedoo  70.00 

Binnaway Central School  70.00 

Mendooran Central School  70.00 

St Lawrence’s Primary School  70.00 

Dunedoo Central School P&C  500.00 

Leadville Community Association  500.00 

Dunedoo Central School  500.00 

Country Women’s Association Coonabarabran 1,420.27 



 
Warrumbungle Shire Council 2019/20 Annual Report 

Page 40 

Coonabarabran Girl Guides  500.00 

St Andrews Anglican Church Coolah  596.45 

Coolah Youth & Community Centre  596.45 

Coonabarabran PAI & H Association  473.00 

St Vincent De Paul Coonabarabran  1,793.00 

Baradine Central School  500.00 

Ulamambri Memorial Hall Trust  500.00 

St James Presbyterian Church Coolah  480.30 

Dunedoo Central School  70.00 

Baradine Central School  70.00 

Coolah Central School  70.00 

Organisation Name Total Value ($) 

Binnaway Jockey Club 1,000.00 

Coolah Historical Arts Tour  2,000.00 

Dunedoo Area Community Group  271.00 

Trustees of the Bugaldie War Memorial Hall  1,000.00 

Coolah Junior Sports Club  672.00 

Dunedoo PAH & I Association  604.50 

Coolah Lions Club  500.00 

Warrumbungle Arts And Craft Inc.  1,762.73 

Dunedoo Area Community Group  271.00 

Warrumbungle Eventing Inc  500.00 

Warrumbungle Wildlife Shelter  552.33 

Coonabarabran Pony Club  2,500.00 

Bullinda Bikebusters Inc  500.00 

Warrumbungle Arts and Craft Inc. 1,000.00 

Caring for Coolah (C4C) Inc  210.00 

Dunedoo Polocrosse Club Inc  500.00 

Coolah Men's Shed Inc 1,000.00 

Commonwealth Bank - Fuel for Healthy Sam  110.61 

Coonabarabran Junior Rugby  500.00 

Mendooran Volunteer Rescue Association  500.00 

Coonabarabran Local Aboriginal Lands Council  100.00 

Dunedoo Rugby League Football Club  342.00 

Dunedoo Rugby League Football Club  348.00 

Dunedoo & District Development Group  25,000.00 

Coolah District Development Group Inc  25,000.00 

2357 Partnerships Incorporated  25,000.00 

Baradine Progress Association  25,000.00 

Mendooran District Development Group  25,000.00 

Binnaway Progress Association  25,000.00 

Total 190,436.13 
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EXTERNAL BODIES 
A statement of all external bodies that during the year exercised functions delegated by the 
council. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

External Body Function 

Castlereagh Macquarie County Council Control noxious weeds on public land and 
waterways 

Macquarie Regional Library Library Services 

 
During the report period Council also had a number of Committees that advised Council on 
specific issues. The advice from these Committees is used to assist in the decision making 
process of Council.  
 
There are four (4) Committees formed as a requirement of statutory obligations or with 
delegations to perform functions of Council. Those Committees report to Council although 
have no formal link to Council. A Councillor representing on these Committees is appointed 
for the term of the Council. 
 

Committee Function 

Castlereagh Bushfire Management Fire mitigation 

Local Emergency Management Emergency co-ordination 

Traffic Advisory Traffic management 

North West Weight of Loads Group Heavy vehicle regulation 

CONTROLLING INTERESTS 
A statement of all corporations, partnerships, trusts, joint ventures, syndicates or other bodies 
(whether or not incorporated) in which the council (whether alone or in conjunction with other 
councils) held a controlling interest during that year. 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Warrumbungle Shire Council did not hold a controlling interest in any company during the 
reporting period. 
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JOINT VENTURES 
A statement of all corporations, partnerships, trusts, joint ventures, syndicates or other 
bodies (whether or not incorporated) in which the council participated that year. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
During 2019/20 Council was a joint venture member of the Macquarie Regional Library 
Service with Dubbo City Council, Wellington Shire Council and Narromine Shire Council. 
During this period Council was also a joint venture member of the Castlereagh Macquarie 
County Council.  
 
Council coordinated the Connect Five Children’s Services which service Warrumbungle, 
Coonamble and Gilgandra Local Government Areas.  
 
Council is also part of Statewide and State Cover which are Mutuals for the provision of 
public liability, property insurance, fidelity guarantee and workers compensation insurances. 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
A statement of the activities undertaken by the council during that year to implement its 
equal employment opportunity management plan. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In relation to Council’s Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Management Plan:  
 

• Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy ensures ongoing compliance with EEO and 
merit selection principles and practices. 

• Council utilises online recruitment software which provides increased transparency of 
decision making. 

• Council’s statement of being an EEO employer is included in all job advertisements. 

• Council conducts ongoing reviews of Council’s policies, procedures and practice to 
ensure they are compliant with EEO principles and practices. 
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REMUNERATION – SENIOR STAFF 
A statement of the total remuneration comprised in the remuneration package of the general 
manager during the year that is to include the following: 
 

(i) the total value of the salary component of the package; 
 

(ii) the total amount of any bonus payments, performance payments or other payments 
made to the general manager that do not form part of the salary component of the 
general manager; 
 

(iii) the total amount payable by the council by way of the employer’s contribution or 
salary sacrifice to any superannuation scheme to which the general manager may be 
a contributor; 
 

(iv) the total value of any non-cash benefits for which the general manager may elect 
under the package; 
 

(v) the total amount payable by the council by way of fringe benefits tax for any such 
non-cash benefits. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A statement of the total remuneration comprised in the remuneration packages of all senior 
staff members (other than the general manager) employed during the year, expressed as the 
total remuneration of all the senior staff members concerned (not of the individual senior staff 
members) and including total of each of the following: 
 

(i) the total values of the salary component of their packages; 
 

(ii) the total amount of any bonus payments, performance payments or other payments 
made to them that do not form part of the salary components of their packages; 
 

(iii) the total amount payable by the council by way of the employer’s contribution or 
salary sacrifice to any superannuation scheme to which any of them may be a 
contributor; 
 

(iv) the total value of any non-cash benefits for which any of them may elect under the 
package; 
 

(v) the total amount payable by the council by way of fringe benefits tax for any such 
non-cash benefits. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The General Manager is Council’s only designated Senior Staff member as prescribed by 
section 332 of the Act. The General Manager’s total remuneration package was: 
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Component Amount ($) 

Salary 249,958.68 

Bonus payments, performance payments or other payments not 
forming part of salary component 

0 

Employer’s contribution or salary sacrifice to any superannuation 
scheme to which the General Manager is a contributor 

26,248.52 

Non-cash benefits 0 

Fringe benefits tax for any such non-cash benefits 7,599.93 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
If the council has levied an annual charge for stormwater management services - a 

statement detailing the stormwater management services provided by the council during that 

year. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Council implemented a stormwater levy in 2017/18 to fund stormwater projects that Council 
is currently unable to fund, due to funding limitations, from General Fund. This stormwater 
levy was introduced and is made under section 496A of the Local Government Act 1993. 
Land within an urban area rated as either residential or business for rating purposes (except 
vacant land) will be charged an annual levy for Council to provide a stormwater management 
service.  
 
Within the local government area there are a total of 3,828 assessments rated as residential 
and 379 assessments rated as business. In accordance with section 125AA of the Local 
Government (General) Regulation 2005, the maximum annual charge for stormwater 
management services levied in respect of a parcel of rateable land is for land categorised as 
urban residential land at $25 and for businesses up to $25 per 350m2. 
 
The stormwater levy helps councils improve the management of the quality and quantity of 
stormwater that flows off a parcel of a privately owned land and also includes a service to 
manage the re-use of stormwater for any purpose. Council will accrue additional revenue of 
$105,175 per annum for expenditure for stormwater management, assuming each business 
and residential assessment is charged a flat $25 per assessment.  
 
Council levied a stormwater charge in 2019/20 and the funds were utilised on the drainage 
works in Cobra Street Mendooran. 

SPECIAL VARIATIONS 
A report on special variation expenditure if required to do so by the instrument made by the 
Minister. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As no special variation was received by Council, there are no outcomes or expenditures to 
report.  
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COMPANION ANIMALS ACT AND REGULATION 
A detailed statement, prepared in accordance with such guidelines as may be issued by the 
Director-General from time to time, of the council’s activities during the year in relation to 
enforcing, and ensuring compliance with, the provisions of the Companion Animals Act 1998 
and the regulations under that Act. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Statement of enforcement and ensuring compliance with the provisions of the Companion 
Animals Act 1988 (CA Act) and the Companion Animal Regulation 2018, including: 
 

Lodgement of pound data collection 

returns with the Office of Local 

Government (survey of Council seizures of 

cats and dogs) 

Survey has been submitted to OLG to be 

included in their annual report regarding 

seizures of cats and dogs 

Lodgement of data about dog attacks with 

the Office of Local Government 

Yes – data lodged through Companion 

Animals register 

Amount of funding spent on companion 

animal management and activities 

$4000 received from Office of Local 

Government (OLG) as part of the Council 

Pound Grant Program during COVID-19 

pandemic 

Community education programs carried out 

and strategies the Council has in place to 

promote and assist the de-sexing of dogs 

and cats 

No programs currently in place. This 

program is carried out locally by 

veterinarians.  

Strategies in place for complying with the 

requirements under s64 of the CA Act to 

seek alternatives to euthanasia of 

unclaimed animals 

Re-homing program in place 

Off leash areas provided in the Council 

area 

One (1) area is available in each town in 

the Shire. Information is provided on 

Council’s website 

Detailed information on fund money used 

for managing and controlling companion 

animals in its area 

Entire $4000 of OLG grant was used for 

upgrades to the Coonabarabran dog pound 

to reduce stress of animals and improve 

hygiene 
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GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC 

ACCESS) 
Each agency (other than a Minister) must, within 4 months after the end of each reporting 
year, prepare an annual report on the agency’s obligations under this Act for submission to 
the Minister responsible for the agency. A copy of the report is to be provided to the 
Information Commissioner. 
 
The annual report of an agency (other than a Minister) required to be prepared under section 
125 of the Act must include the following: 
 
(Note: An agency’s report under section 125 of the Act can be included in the agency’s 
annual report required to be prepared under the annual reporting legislation – see section 6 
of the Annual Reports (Departments) Act 1985 or section 5A of the Annual Reports 
(Statutory Bodies) Act 1984 [as the case requires].) 
 

(a) details of the review carried out by the agency under section 7(3) of the Act during 
the reporting year and the details of any information made publicly available by the 
agency as a result of that review; 
 

(b) the total number of access applications received by the agency during the reporting 
year (including withdrawn applications but not including invalid applications); 
 

(c) the total number of access applications received by the agency during the reporting 
year that the agency refused, either wholly or partly, because the application was for 
the disclosure of information referred to in Schedule 1 to the Act (Information for 
which there is conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against 
disclosure). 

 
(Note: Table D in Schedule 2 also requires information relating to access applications in 
respect of which there is a conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against 
disclosure.) 
 

(d) information, as set out in the form required by the tables in Schedule 2, relating to the 
access applications (if any) made to the agency during the reporting year. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Council received three (3) access applications during the reporting period. Details are 
provided in the table on the following page. 
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Number of Applications by Type of Application Outcome 
 

 Full 
Access 
Granted 

Part 
Access 
Granted 

Refused 
Access 
in Full 

Information 
not Held 

Information 
Already 

Available 

Refuse to 
Deal with 

Application 

Refuse to 
Confirm/ 

Deny 
Information 

Held 

Application 
Withdrawn 

Total % of 
Total 

Personal 
Information 
Applications           

Applications 
other than 
personal 
information 

2   1     3 100 

Applications 
partly 
personal 
and partly 
other 

          

Total 

2   1       

% of total 

67   33       

 
Note: A personal information application is an access application for personal information (as defined in clause 4 of schedule 4 to the Act) 
about the application (the applicant being an individual). 
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PLANNING AGREEMENTS 
A planning authority that has entered into one or more planning agreements must, while any 
such planning agreements remain in force, include in its annual report particulars of 
compliance with and the effect of the planning agreements during the year to which the report 
relates. 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A planning authority that has entered into one or more planning agreements must, while any 
such planning agreements remain in force, include in its annual report particulars of 
compliance with and the effect of the planning agreements during the year to which the report 
relates.  
 
Council entered into a Voluntary Planning Agreement with TILT Renewables for the Liverpool 
Range Wind Farm during 2019/20 financial year. 

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURES 
Information required to be provided in accordance with s2 of the Public Disclosures 
Regulation 2011 is included herewith: 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Personal Interest Disclosures (PID) submitted to the Ombudsman in 2019/20 are outlined in 
the table below. 

 

By public 
officials 

performing their 
daily functions 

Under a 
statutory or 
other legal 
obligation 

All other 
interest 

disclosures 

 
PID applications by public officials 

 1 0 0 

 
Access applications other than 

personal information 
 0 3 0 

PID received, primarily about:  

Corrupt conduct 1 0 0 

 
Maladministration 

 0 0 0 

 
Serious and substantial waste 

 0 0 0 

 
Government information convention 

 0 0 0 

 
Local government pecuniary interest 

convention 
 0 0 0 

Total 1 3 0 
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ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachments 1-3: 2019/20 Audited Financial Statements 
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Overview

Warrumbungle Shire Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business
at

14-22 John Street
Coonabarabran NSW 2357

Council s guiding principles are detaded In Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes

• principles applying to the exercise of funct ons generally by council
• principles to be applied when mak ng decisions.
• principles of community participation.
- pnnciples of sound financial management. and
• principles for strategic planring relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Counc I s operations and its pnncipal activities are provided In Note 2 b

Through the use of the intemet we have ensured that our reporting is timely complete and available at minimum cost All press
releases financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website www.werrumbungle nsw gov.au.
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Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Introduction

Each year. individual Local Governments across NSW are required to present a set of audited financial statements to their
council and community.

What you will find in the Statements

The financial statements set out the financial performance. financial position and cash flows of Councd for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and comphes with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Austrahan Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Government

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements must be certthed by senior staff as presenting fairly' the Councifs financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council - ensuring Doth responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

The financial statements incorporate fivo "primary" financial statements

t The Income Statement
Summarises Council's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays
Counc#s original adopted budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Pnmarily records changes in the fair value of Councifs Infrastructure. property. plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Councifs financial posit?n ind cating its assets. habihtles and net wealth .

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Councds 'net wealth".

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Councifs cash came from and where rt was spent. Thts statement also displays Councds original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional informaton on the five pnmary financial statements.

About the Auditors Reports

Councds financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.

in NSW the auditor provides 2 audit reports

1. an opinion on whether the financiat statements present fairly the Counc I s financial performance and position. and
2 their observatons on the conduct of the audit. including commentary on the Council's financial performance and financial

positon.

Who uses the Financial Statements?

The f nancial statements are publicly available documents and must be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to seven days subsequent to the pubhc presentation of the financial statements.

Council is requ red to forward an audited set of financial statements to the Office of Local Government.
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Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

• the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder

• the Austrahan Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

• the local Government Cacle of Accounting Practice ana Financial Re; otting

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:

• present fairly the Councirs operating result and financial position for the year

- accord with Councifs accounting and other records

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 19 November 2020.

Clf Ambrose Doolan Cir Antello lannuzzi
Mayor Councillor
19 November 2020 19 November 2020

Roger Bailey Kim Parker
General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
19 November 2020 19 November 2020
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Warrumbungle Shire Council "anoalstate"'ents2020

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Original
unaudited Restated

budget Actual Actual
2020 $ '000 2020 2019

Income from continuing operations
13.606 Rates and annual charges 13.844 13.015
8.796 User charges and fees 6.066 5.642
1.338 Other revenues 2.137 1.073

17 435 Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 16.121 16.424
3.137 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3 775 5.886

493 Interest and investment income 460 461
246 Net gains from the disposal of assets 599 999

Net share of interests In joint ventures and associates
44 15using the equity method

45,051 Total income from continuing operations 43.046 43.515

Expenses from continuing operations
16.360 Employee benefits and on-costs 14 929 14.484

195 Borrowing costs 30 o2¯
8 051 Materials and contracts 7.185 10.024

11 973 Deprec1aton and amortisation 12. 970 12.531
8.502 Other expenses 5.395 5.511

45.081 Total expenses from continuing operations 40.786 42.877

(30) Operating result from continuing operations 2,260 638

(30) Net operating result for the year 2 260 638

(30) Net operating result attributable to council 2 260 638

(3 167)
Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions

(1.5151 (5 248)provided for capital purposes

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applymg AASB 105B Income of Not-for-Profit Entities AASB 15 Revenue frorn
Contracts mth Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts. AASB 118 Revenue. AASB 1004 Contabutions. AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting interpretat?ns.

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Restated
$ '000 2020 2019

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 2,260 638

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 50.651 825
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating
result 50,651 825

Total other comprehensive income for the year 50.651 825

Total comprehensive income for the year 52 911 1 463

Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 52.911 1.463

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 !ncome of Nat-for-Probt Entines. AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases The cornparative information has been prepared under AASS 111 Construcuon
Contracts. AASB 116 Revenue AASB 1004 Contributions AASB 11-i Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in can unchon with the accompanying notes.
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Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

Statement of FinanCial Position
as at 30 June 2020

. . . .

Restated Restated
S '000 . 2020 2019 1 July 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.859 4.738 5 544
Investments 11.500 13.000 11.500
Receivables 3.766 3 501 6.153
Inventories 725 758 738
Contract assets 1.645 - -
Other 53 89 220
Non-Current assets classified as held for sate' 142 -
Total current assets 24.690 22.086 24.155

Non-current assets
Receivables - 2

Inventories 299 299 299
Infrastructure. property. plant and equipment 550 317 499.037 495 914
intangible Assets 29 95 167

Right of use assets 246
investments accounted for using the equity method 444 400 385

Total non-current assets 551,335 499.831 496.767

Total assets 576,025 521.917 520.922

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 2.025 2.038 1.775
Income received in advance - 544
Contract liabilities 1 265 -
Lease liabilities 45 -
Borrowings 966 795 867
Provisions 4.647 4,446 4.438
Total current liabilities 8,948 7.279 7.624

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 223 -
Borrowings 2 931 3.870 4.777
Provisions 3.102 3.175 2.391

Total non-current liabilities 6.256 7,045 7.168

Total liabilities 15,204 14.324 14.792

Net assets 560 821 507 593 506,130

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 422.485 419.908 419 270
Revaluation reserves 138.336 87.685 86,860
Council equity interest 560.821 507.593 506.130

Total equity 560,821 507,593 506 130

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not4or-Pratti Entities AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts. AASB 118 Revenue. AASB 1004 Contnbutions. AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Financiaf Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Warrumbungle Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

as .w 3ome 20 as al muoutto
IPP&E IPPaErotal TotalAcet mulated rev.hation Accurnulatcd revAlation

sinph;s rrmerve
EqUlly

sumtus reserve equity

5 '000 Restated Restated Restated

Restated opening balance 420 22 i 87 her G07 91fj 4 m 270 F:6 Min F0·. .13f1

Restated not operating result for the period 2 2r,g .. -2 ac,g 639

Other comprehensive income

Ot1 r I ise income
. .

Total comprehensive income 2 ;yn r30 6S1 52 91 1 63 825 1 403

Equity - balance at end of the reporting period 422.·n,5 13B 331 r·E:0 B21 419 908 07 Af5 5f17 f 'D
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

. . .. . . .

Original
unaudited

budget Actual Actual
2020 $ '000

. 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:

13.604 Rates and annual charges 13.622 12.815
8.795 User charges and fees 5.936 .4.986

494 Investment and interest revenue received 424 397
20,573 Grants and contributions 19 569 21,812

- Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received 25 378
1 331 Other 1.810 4.553

Payments:
(16.355) Employee benefits and on-costs (14.559) (14,650)

(8,046) Materials and contracts (7.295) (10.137)
(195) Borrowing costs (185) (2741

(8.503) Other (5.618) (4,4971
Net cash provided (or used in) operating

11.698 activities 13.729 15,383

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:

846 Sale of infrastructure property plant and equipment 1.210 1.303

Payments:
- Purchase of investment securities 1 500 (1.500)

(13.450) Purchase of infrastructure. property: plant and equipment (13 523) (15 012)

- Purchase of intangible assets - (1)

(12 604) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (10.813) (15.210)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments:

(913) Repayment of borrowings and advances (768) (9791
Lease liabilities (principal repayments) (27) --

(913) Net cash flow provided (used in) financing activities (795) (979)

(1,819) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2.121 (806)

11.082 Plus. cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 4.738 5 544

9,263 Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year 6.859 4.738

- plus Investments on hand - end of year 11 500 13.000

9,263 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 18.359 17.738

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASS 1058 /ncome of Not-for-Profit Entities. AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts. AASB 118 Revenue. AASB 1004 Contributtons. AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting laterpretations.

The above Statement of cash Rows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents of the Notes accompanying the General Purpose Financial Staternents

Note Details Page

1 Basis of preparation 11

2(a) Council functions/activities - financial information 14

2(b) Council functions/activities - component descriptions 15

3 Revenue from continuing operations 16

4 Interest and investment income 22

5 Expenses from continuing operations 23

6 Gain or loss from disposal of assets 27

7(a) Cash and cash equivalents 27

7(b) Investments 27

7(c) Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments 29

8 Receivables 30

9 Inventories and other assets 31

10 Non-current assets classified as held for sale 32

11 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 33

12 Intangible assets 37

13 Contract assets and liabilities 38

14 Leases 39

15 Payables and borrowings 42

16 Provisions 44

17 Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies, changes in 47
accounting estimates and errors

18 Statement of cash flow information 53

19 Interests in other entities 54

20 Commitments 57

21 Contingencies 58

22 Financial risk management 61

23 Material budget variations 65

24 Fair Value Measurement 66

25 Related party disclosures 73

26 Events occurring after the reporting date 73

27 Statement of developer contributions 74
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29(a) Statement of performance measures - consolidated results 79
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29(c) Statement of performance measures - consolidated results (graphs) 81
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Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation

These hnancial statements were authonsed for issue by Counc I on 19 November 2020. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where cntical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The pnncipal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out belove.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance WFth Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations. the Local Govemment Act 1993 (NSW) and Regulations and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council s a not for-profit entity.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars

(a) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. as modified by the revaluation of
certain financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property. plant and equipment and investment
property.

(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of cell.ain cntical accounting estimates It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors. including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumpt ons concerning the future.

The resultrng accounting estimates will. by defin tion seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year include.

(t) estimated fair values of infrastructure. property. plant and equipment - refer Note 11

(ii) estimated tip remediation provisions - refer Note 16

(iii) employee benefit provisions - refer Note 16.

continued on next page ... Page 11 of 83
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies

(i) impairment of receivables

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables - refer Note 8.

Monies and other assets received by Council

(a) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW). all money and property received
by Council is held in the Councifs Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Councifs Trust Fund.

The Consolidated Fund has been included in the Councils financial statements.

Cash and other assets of the following entitles have been included as part of the Consohdated Fund

- General purpose operations
= Warrumbungle Water Fund

• Warrumbungle Sewerage Fund

- Warrumbungle Q uarry

(b) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Govemment Act 1993 (NSu0 ias amendedt a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be apphed
only for the purposes of. or in accordance WFth. the trusts re[ating to those montes

Trust monies and property subject to Councifs control have been included in these reports.

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the Council office by any person free
of charge

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues. expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST r,?coverable
from. or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis The GST components of cash flows arismg from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from. or payable to. the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Council uses volunteers in the following services

• Visitors Information Centre
• Community care including dnvers for meals of Wheels delivery. dr vers for health related transport from aH our local

towns to Tamwor th or Dubbo. volunteers assisting with specific activities e.g. Community EXPO. volunteers to act in a

carer capacity for frail or clients with disability to attend appointments etc

The volunteer numbers are small and the hours for each are minor in nature.

As these instances are limited and minor. Council does not include values in the Annual Statements.

continued on next page . . Page 12 of 83
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certa n new accounting standards and interpretations (i.e. pronouncements) have been published by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period.

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operat ve dates.

As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements Council does not consrder that any of these new (and still to be
applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material impact on the Councifs future financial statements. financial
position. financial performance or cash flows.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

Dunng the year Council adopted the following accounting standards and interpretations (as 1ssued by the Austral an Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from 1 July 2019.

• AASB 16 Leases
- AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and associated amending standards
- AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-profit entities

Further information on the newly adopted standards which had a material impact on Counc ls reported financial position.
financ al performance and/or associated financial statement disclosures can be found at Note 1 7

Key events in 2019/20

Covid-19

The global health crisis from the Covid-19 virus has not had a material impact on Council's operations. which is reflected in

the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(a), Council functions/activities - financial information
. .. . . . . .. . .. . . --- - . . . .. . ... ....-.. ... _.. -,.___.,. ........................ _..

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities.
Detalls of those functions oractivities are provided in Note 2(b).

Grants irtcluded
Income from Expenses from Operating result from in Income from

continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations continuing operations Carrying amount of assets
202D 2019 2020 2013 ' 2020 2019 ' 2020 2019 2020 2019 *

S '000 Restated Restated
.
Restated

Functions or activities
General Revenue 15.862 15.557 135 15,727 15,557 7.367 7,337 210 2.299
Execuhve 1.014 1,542 2.631 3.043 (1.657) (1,501) 161 - 1.245 49
Technical Semces 10,347 8.859 14,616 17,409 (4,269) (8.550) 4,788 4.510 454.502 376.100
Development Services 1,408 1,$25 4,089 3,529 (2.681) (2 004) 769 611 12.119 16,580
Corporate and Community Services 4.784 6.789 8.451 9.497 (3,667) (2,708) 2,793 5.047 28,601 56.551
Warrurnbungle Water 3,847 4.415 4,440 4.149 (593) 286 235 1.345 43,214 43,466
Warrumbungle Sewer 2.142 1.787 2,019 1,860 123 (73) 145 34 22,443 22,159
Warrumbungle Waste 2,US$ 2,400 3302 2.369 (447) 31 - - 12.544 456
Warrumbungle Quarry 767 641 1.103 1.021 (316) (380) - 660 2,237
Other 467 -
Total functions and actMtios 43,046 43,515 40.786 42.877 2,260 638 16,255 1_8,884 576425. 521917

W Values have been restated - refer note 17
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions

Details relating to the Council's functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

General Revenue
Includes rates revenue, interest revenue and generat grants.

General Manager
Includes management and leadership, governance. Cobbora Transition Fund. human resource management. payroll services.
WH&S and nsk management and learning and development services.

Technical Services
includes technical services management. design services road operations fleet services and urban services.

Development Services
Includes development services management. regulatory services property and risk and development and tounsm.

Corporate and Community Services
Includes corporate services. community and banking agency bushfire and emergency services. children s and community
services

Warrumbungle Water
The core function of Warrumbungle Water is the provision of water supply to connected properties in each town within the Shire.

Warrumbungle Sewer
The core function of Warrumbungle Sewer is the cohection and treatment of sewage effluent frorn connected properties in

Baradine. Coolah Coonabarabran and Dunedoo

Warrumbungle Waste
Warrumbungle Waste provides waste services throughout the Warrumbungle Shire as a business arm of Council. The waste
services are provided to residential and non-residential customers for both general waste and recychng.

Warrumbungle Quarry
Council has entered into a lease agreement with Boral to operate the basalt quarry south of Coonabarabran. The purpose of
the operation is to produce aggregates for bitumen seahng and concrete production on a commercial basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from Continuing operations

S '000 usB 2020 2019

(a) Rates and annual Charges

Ordinary rates
Residential 1956 m 2 321 2.271
Farmland icse m 5.220 5,080
Business mes p) 595 582
Less pensioner rebates (mandatory) mss pj (158) (159)
Rates levied to ratepayers 7.978 7,774

Pensioner rate subsidies received m5e (n 87 88
Total ordinary rates 8.06S 7.862

Annual charges

Domestic waste management services mse p 1 727 1 632
Water supply services ase m 1 886 1.609
Sewerage services ;ose m 1.761 1.535
Waste management services (non-domestic) msa < a 395 364
Less pensioner rebates (mandatory) mu m (228) (228)
Liquid trade waste tos3 p 9 9

Stormwater levy o5a m 105 105
Annual charges levied 5.655 5.026

Pensioner subsidies received

- Water m58 m 38 39

- Sewerage mse m 27 29

- Domestic waste management mes pi 59 59
Total annual charges 5.779 5.153

TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 13 844 13,015

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material tems of Council revenue.

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 at a point in time .

Council has used 2019 year valuat?ns provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy for rates and charges
Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the assets compnstng these
receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate.

Prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and cedain annual charges for eligible pensioners place of residence in the
local government council area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate substdles are receFVed from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates
and are in substance a rates payment.

2019 accounting policy
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as it is an
enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or. where earlier upon receipt of the rates.

continued on next page ... Page 16 of 83
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

$ '000 MSB 2020 2019

(b) User charges and fees

Specific user charges
(per s.502 - specific 'actual use' charges)
Water supply services 15 p) 1.700 1.431

Sewerage services ,s p; 119 95
Liquid trade waste m of 55 40
Total specific user charges 1,874 1.566

Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges -statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)

Building regulation 15 p) 49 G3

Private works - section 67 m m 215 59

Registration fees m o) 6 10

Regulatory fees ,s n, 26 45
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) m m 27 30
Section 603 certificates m < n 19 18

Planning regulation a ; n 36 52

Total fees and charges -statutory/regulatory 378 277

(ii) Fees and charges - other (incL general user charges (per s,608))
Aged care m a t 502 460
Cemeteries o 99 93

Chdd care 461 766
Lease rentals 13 14

Leaseback fees - Councd vehicles m m 51 62

Quarry revenues m < o 768 555
RMS (formerly RTA) charges (state roads not controlled by Council) m m 1.613 1 587

Swimming centres m t n 118 118

Tourisn1 m o 49 59
Waste disposal tipping fees m p 68 51

Other m m 72 34

Total fees and charges -other 3.814 3,799

TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 6,066 5 642

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for matenal items of Council revenue

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 at a point in time"
15 (2) indicates income recogn sed under AASB 15 ' over time .

Accounting policy for user charges and fees
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks. the customer is required to
pay on arrival. There is no material obligation for Couned in relation to refunds or returns.

Where an upfront fee is charged such as membership fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-hne basis
over the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence.

continued on next page ... Page 17 of 83
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

2019 accounting policy
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the sen ice has been provided.

S '000 AAse 2020 2019

(C) Other revenues

Rental income - other council properties 15 m 156 140
Legal fees recovery - rates and charges (extra charges) 105e p: 5 17

Commissions and agency fees ;o58 p 179 192

Diesel rebate mss o 175 192

(nsurance claims recoveries m58 n 3 15

Recychng income (non-domestic) 142 71

Container deposit Scheme m o 339 310
Other mss m 352 136
Sale Of Southern Phone Share ,5 n 786

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 2,137 1 073

The AASB notaton (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for matenal items of Council revenue.

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 "at a point in time
15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 over tune
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 at a point in time .

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue relates to a contract with customer the revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is

completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Where the revenue relates to a contract which is not enforceable or does not contain sufficiently specific perfot mance
obhgations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a receivable arises or the cash is received. which is
earlier.

2019 accounting policy:
Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be rehably measured It is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Council and specific anteria have been met for each of the Council s activities as described below Council
bases its estimates on histoncal results taking into consideration the type of customer the type of transaction and the specifies
of each arrangement.

continued on next page ... Page 18 of 83
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 AAss 2020 2019 2020 2019

(d) Grants

General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance - general component :oss m 2.331 2.331
Financial assistance - local roads component sess 1.245 1.227
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance - general component mss m 2.469 2.417 - -
Financial assistance - iocal roads component mss m 1 322 1.273
Other
Other grants - 17

Total general purpose 7.367 7.265 - -
Specific purpose
Water supplies mes m - 16 235 1 329

Aged care 15 p; 729 67'
Bushfire and emergency services mse . n 702 479 59 229
Child care me c o 1.042 1.289 22

Cobbora transition fund msa , a - -- (327)
Drought Communities mss (a 249 72 601 494
Economic development mee (a 105 120 -
Employment and training programs mss 1 107 53 -
Heritage and cultural m68 o 10 36 -
Library mss n i 88 51

LIRS subsidy mss 94 112 - -
Recreaton and culture lose o 30 90 29 589
Secure Communities msm, 147 266 568 683

Sewerage services loss , o - - 145 34

Transport (roads to recovery, msa 2.330 2.297

Transport (other roads and bndges funding) mse 241 787 1.823 2.190
Other mss o 4 20 (472) 33

Total specific purpose 5,878 6.365 3,010 5.254

Total grants 13,245 13 630 3,010 5,254

Grant revenue is attributable to:

- Commonwealth fundin9 11.120 11.257 22 494

- State funding 2.125 2.373 3,350 4.760

- Other funding - - (362)

13.245 13.630 3.010 5.254

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 over time
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 at a point in time

. while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 over time

continued on next page ... Page 19 of 83
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 Ass 2020 2019 2020 2019

(e) Contributions

Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.12 - fixed development consent levies :ose tu - 51 37

Total developer contributions - - 51 37

Other contributions:
Cash contributions
RMS contnbutions (regional roads block

grant) 1css n 2.876 2.794

Total other contributions - cash 2.876 2,794 -
Non-cash contributions
Bushfire services :ces 709 547

Heritage/cultural (Non-cash) 48
Other

Total other contributions - non-cash - - 714 595

Total other contributions 2.876 2.794 714 595

Total contributionS 2,876 2,794 765 632

TOTALGRANTSAND
CONTRIBUTIONS 16,121 16 424 3.775 5.886

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for matenai items of Council revenue

1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 at a point in time

Accounting policy for grants and contributions

Accounting policy from 1 July 2019

Grant income under AASB 15

Where grant income anses from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue are recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The per formance obligations are varied based on the agreement but include [provide detads of performance obligations within
AASB 15 grants e g. events. vaccinations]. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant. cash is received upfront
for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within
grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract.

Where control 1s transferred over time. generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

conünued on next page ... Page 20 of 83
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

Grant income

Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset s received.
Councds considers whether there are any related habihty or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in

accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and habrhties have been recognised then ncome is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset ts received.

Capital grants

Capital grants rece ved to enable Counch to acquire or construct an item of infrastructure. property. plant and equipment to
identified specifications which will be under Councils control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when
the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects. this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropnate measure of the completeness of the construction project as there is no profit margin

For acquisit ons of assets. the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council

Contributions

Council has obligations to provide facdities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4. 7 11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

While Councd generaUy incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order. such developer contributons
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council. due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and. accordingly. would not be payable to Council.

Developer coninbutions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required. but the Councd
may apply contributions according to the prionties established in work schedules

Accounting policy prior to 1 July 2019

Controf over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittah and revenue is recognised at this
time and is valued at the fair value of the granted or contnbuted asset at the date of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on conditon that they be

expended In a particular manner. or used over a par ticular pened. and those conditions were un-discharged at reporting date.
the unused grant or contnbution is disclosed below.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is rec procal in nature to the extent that the requisite service has not been
provided at reporting date.
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Note 3. Revenue from continuing operations (continued)

$'000 2020 2019

(f) Unspent grants and contributions - external restrictions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition that they be

spent in a specified manner due to externally 1mposed restrictions.

Operating grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting penod 1.495 3.050

Add: operating grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent
(2019 only) - 1.556

Add: operating grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

period 2.145

Less: operating grants recognised in a previous reporting pened now spent (2019
only) - (3.111)

Less: operating grants received in a previous reporting pened now spent and

recognised as income (1 495)

Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (grants) 2,145 1.495

Note 4. Interest and investment income

$ *000 2020 2019

Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 166 136

- Cash and investments 278 313
Other 16 12

..

Total Interest and investment income 460 461

Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective !nterest rate at the date that interest is earned
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations

$ '000 2020 2019

(a) Employee benefits and on-costs

Salaries and wages 11.928 11 957

Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 2.378 2.357

Superannuation 1 232 1.301

Workers compensation insurance 606 572

Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 41 60
Protective clothing 79 80

Total employee costs 16.264 16.327

Less capitalised costs
..... ..

...(1 335) (1.843)
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 14,929 14.484

Number of full-time equivalent employees (FTE) at year end 175 177

Number of fult-time equivalent employees (FTE) at year end onc1 vacancies) 215 213

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement. disability or death. Council contributes to vanous defined
benefit plans and defined contributon plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuatmn plans

Coninbutions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contr butions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme. however. sufficient
nformat?n to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for is obligatons to

defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obhgations to defined contnbution plans I e. as an expense when it becomes
payable - refer to Note 21 for more Informaton.
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

S '000 . 2020 2019

(b) Borrowing costs

(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on leases 6

interest on loans 225 242

Total interest bearing liability costs 231 242

Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 231 242

(ii) Other borrowing costs
Amortisation of discounts and premiums

- Remediation fiabilities 76 85

Total other borrowing costs 76 85

TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED 307 327

Accounting policy for borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the penod of time that is requ1red
to complete and prepare the asset for its ntended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

$ '000 2020 2019

(c) Materials and contracts

Raw materials and consumables 4.580 5.312
Contractor and consultancy costs 10 694 15.596
Auditors remuneraton 2

54 48

Legal expenses:
- Legal expenses planning and development 12 24

- Legal expenses debt recovery 40 33

- Legal expenses. other 518 785

Operating leases expense (2019 only):

- Operating lease rentals min1mum lease payments 67

Other 498 557
Total materials and contracts 16,396 22.422

Less capitalised costs (9 211) (12.398)

TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 7.185 10,024

Accounting policy for materials and contracts
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the councd receives the goods or services.

Operating leases (2019 only)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to counc:1as lessoo aro classif:cd
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessori are charged to
the income statement on a straight--IIne basis over the period of the lease.

1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:
Library Building 60
Office Equipment

- 67
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

$ '000 2020 2019

2. Auditor remuneration
During the year, the follow ng fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor
of Council. related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements 54 48
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 54 48

Total Auditor-General remuneration 54 48

Total Auditor remuneration 54 48

2020 2019
$ '000 Restated

(d) Depreciation. amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 2.578 2 613
Office equipment 30 15

Furniture and fittings 29 29
Land improvements (depreciable) 49 49
Infrastructure:

- Buildings - non-specialised 506 555

- Buildings - specialised 1.305 1.337

- Other structures 681 639

- Roads 4 687 4.526

- Bridges 471 466

- Footpaths 147 137

- Stormwater drainage 111 110

- Water supply network 1.484 1.316

- Sewerage network 668 603

Right of use assets 49
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:

- Tip assets 24 15

- Quarry assets 85 48

intangible assets . 66 73

Total depreciation and amortisation costs 12.970 12.531

TOTAL DEPRECIATION. AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 12.970 12,531

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses of non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to aHocate their cost. net of their residual values.
over their estimated useful lives. Useful Irves are included in Note 11 for IPPE assets and Note 12 for intangible assets and
Note 14 for right of use assets.
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Note 5. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

Depreciation is capitalised where in-house assets have contributed to new assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Council assets held at fa r value that are not held pnmanly for their abihty to generate net cash flow. and that are deemed to be
speciahsed are no longer required to be tested for impairment under AASB 136. This ts because these assets are assessed
on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying amount 1s not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment
loss would be captured during this assessment.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life. or are not yet available for use. are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets that do not meet the enteria
above are tested for Impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to self and value in use.

For the purposes of assessmg impairment. assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash infFows that are fargely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairrnent are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Impa rment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surptus for the class of asset
with only the excess lo be recognised in the Income Statement

S'000 2020 2019

(e) Other expenses

Advertising 124 138
Bad and doubtful debts 193 186

Bank charges 45 47
Conferences 51 55
Contnbuttons/levies to other levels of government

- Noxious weeds 108 105

- NSW hre bngade levy 51 46

- NSW rural fire service levy 793 584
Councillor expenses - mayor al fee 27 26
Councillor expenses - councillors fees 107 107

Councillors expenses (mci mayor) - other (excluding fees above) 17 26
Donations contributions and assistance to otl er organisations (Section 356) 358 241

- Regional library contributions 553 577

Electricity and heatin9 607 660
insurance 811 775

Postage 46 45

Printing and stationery 128 137

Quarry product cost of goods sold 256 194

Registration and licences 452 430

Training Costs 165 166
Street tighting 123 181

Subscriptions and publicatons 94 148

Telephone and communications 131 154

Valuation fees 48 108

Other 10/ a75

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 5 395 5 511

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.
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Note 6. Gain or loss from disposal of assets

S '000 2020 2019

Plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal -- plant and equipment 1.210 1.303
Less carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/wntten off (611) (304)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 599 999

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 599 999

Accounting policy for disposal of assets
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by companng proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
income Statement. The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to
the buyer and the asset is de-recognised

Note 7(a). Cash and cash equivalents

$ '000 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank 1.010 1.476
Deposits at call 5.849 3,262.

Total cash and cash equivalents 6.859 4.738

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents
For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes. cash and cash equivalents include. cash on hand. deposits held at call
with financial institutions. other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Posit on.

Note 7(b). Investments

2020 2020 2019 2019
S '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Investments
Financial assets at amortised cost

11.500 - 13.000

Total Investments 11,500 13,000 -
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 18,359 17,738 -

Long term deposits (>3 months onqinal matunty) 11 500 13 000

Total 11.500 - 13,000 -

Accounting policy for investments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Couned becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recogniton. all financial Instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs texcept for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).
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Note 7(b). Investments (continued)

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification
On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assets into the following categories - those measured at:

• amortised cost
• fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
• fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI-equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

As at 30 June 2020, Council did not have any investments at FVTPL or FVOCI-equity recognised.

Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

• the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
• the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Councils financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
investments in the Statement of Financial Position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

interest income, impairment and gain or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.
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Note 7(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 18.359 - 17.738 -
attributable to:
External restnctions 7.427 - 6.179
Internal restnctions 9 963 - 9.491
Unrestricted 969 - 2 068

18,359 - 17.738 -

$ '000 2020 2019

Details of restrictions

External restrictions - included in liabilities
Trust 691 667

External restrictions - included in liabilities 691 667

External restrictions - other
Developer contributions -general 201 150

Developer contributions - water fund 102 101

Developer contributions - sewer fund 32 31

Specific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) - general fund 2 145 1.495
Water supplies 252 934

Sewerage services 3.774 2.764
Domestic waste management 213
Stormwater levy 17 37

External restrictions - other 6.736 5.512

Total external restrictions 7.427 6.179

Internal restrictions
Plant and vehicle replacement (fleet fundi 2.056 1 872

Employees leave entitlement 1.272 1.401

Carry over works (excl fleet carry overs) 2.357 1 946
FAG s 1st and 2nd qtr. prepayment 3.791 3.690
information technology (Software upgrade/telephone system) 263 358

Quarry remediation fund 224 224

Total internal restrictions 9.963 9,491

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 17.390 15,670
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Note 8. Receivables

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Purpose
Rates and annual charges 1.610 - 1.464
Interest and extra charges 324 - 298
User charges and fees 1.033 - 903
Accrued revenues

- Interest on investments 26 - 16

- Other income accruals 198 - 171

Government grants and subsidies - - 450
Bonds 8 Deposits 2 - 2

Other debtors 1.226 - 657

Total 4 419 - 3,961 -
Less: provision of impairment
Rates and annual charges (244) - (320)
Other debtors (409) - (140)
Total provision for impairment -
receivables (653) - (460)

TOTAL N_ET_R_ECEJVABLES 3,766 - 3,501

$'000 2020 2019

Movement in provision for impairment of receivables
Balancé at the beginning of the year (calculated in accordance with AASB 139) 460 296
+ new provisions recognised during the yeat 193 164

Balance at the end of the year 653 460

Accounting policy for receivables

Recognition and measurement
Receivables are included in current assets. except for those with matunties greater than 12 months after the leporting date
which are classified as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

When determining whether the credit nsk of a financ al asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. and when
estimating ECL. the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council s historical expenence
and informed credit assessment. and including forward-tooking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors. Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors. Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit nsk.

The Councrl uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
- the other party is unlikely to pay Its credit obligations to the Council in fulf. without recourse by the Council to actions

such as realising security (if any is held) or
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Note 8. Receivables (continued)

- Ine financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 60 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance wnh
the contract and the cash flows expected to be received This is applied using a probability weighted approach

On initial recogniton of the asset an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made dunng the current reporting pened.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers. the new expected cash flows are
discounted at the onginal effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured aga nst the property

Note 9. Inventories and other assets

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

(a) Inventories

(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale 299 299
Stores and matenals 506 - 420
Loose tools 22 - 22

Other (quarry product) 197 316
Total inventories at cost 725 299 758 299

TOTAL INVENTORIES 725 299 758 299

(b) Other assets

Prepayments 53 - 89 -
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 53 89 -
Accounting policy for inventories and other assets

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods
Raw materials and stores. work in progress and hnished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value.
Costs are assigned to individual Items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventon;
are determined after deducting rehates and discounts Net realisable value is the estimated seffing price !n the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs
Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by spec f c identificaton and
includes the cost of acquisition. and development and borrowing costs during development. When development is
completed. borrowing costs ano other holding charges are expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs included in the cost of
land held for resafe are those costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure on the acqu sit?n and development of
the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred whde active development is interrupted for extended periods are
recognised as expenses.
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Note 10. Non-current assets classified as held for sale

(i) Non-Current assets

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Non-current assets 'held for sale'
Land 46 - - -
Buildings 96

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CLASSlFIED AS 'HELD FOR
SALE' 142 -
(ii) Details of assets

Council has made the decision to sell 2 residential buildings located FA Coolah.

Accounting policy for non-current assets classified as held for sale
Non-current assets (or disposa) groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continued use. They are measured at the lower of then carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. except for assets such as assets arising from employee benefits. financial assets. and investment
properties that are carned at fair value.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent wnte-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in farr value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group).
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the
date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is iecognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets Uncluding those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale.
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

as at gar06tl9 Asset movements dedng the re Ing period as st 30195/20

The
NAI ItemaIo) Ra an RorAnton Net

Gross certpng Cs Ad morts 'hald fçe decremesun h,r,tements Grns cartfeg
c.anyire Awadsted amount Aristions Add.t a lue of DepranalierI WIP afd nels' r eitulp ga eq cerñtr Arammdaleir MA

........ .....,_.,----...... -, _......-.._ ,-,------ '10M0.. d•P'ecral n renewa ne annets apeal p nee ._Janaten Imater e e'L- RR rr m de requrjor

Capilat nork In progress 7,123 - 7.123 t.401 2.963 - - (3.953} (64) - - - 7,450 - 7.450
Plant and equipment 34.351 (20.597) t3.754 3.887 09 (61t} (2.575) 4 35,73% G1,156) t4.545
Of5ce equipment 1.80s (t.652) 149 65 30 {30) 14 1,910 (1,652) 226
Fumiturm and dtlings 737 (672) 65 - - 120) - - - - 737 (701) 36
Land:

- Operattonalland 5.80t - 5,501 - 280 - - (46) - 6.015 6.015
-communittland f A29 - 1.429 1.429 1,429
1.and inprovements -depreciable 1,873 (406) I,467 19 165 (49) 14 - 2,071 (455) 1,616
(nfrastructure:

- Buildiags-nep-sposiahsed 26.234 (15,619) 10,615 - (506) (96) - 25A64 (15A55) 10.013
- Binidinge -spedabsed 57.709 (33.395) 24.314 614 61 - (1,3OS) 41 58A24 (34 699) 23.725
- Other structures 24.139 (8.857) 15.232 103f 100 - (65t) 17 25.266 (9.567) 15.699
-Roads 276.356 (67,070) 209.316 2.249 110 - (4,687) 1.417 - (7,520) - 255.242 (54,357) 200,885
-Blidges 83.991 (FA22) 55.569 - (47t} - (3,953) - 70,531 (18.686) 52.t45
- Footpiilhs 6,535 (2.028) 4,507 36 - (147) - 436 9,233 (4.000) 5.233
-Bulk eallhworks (hen-depredabte) $5.645 - 88.645 - 60.357 149.002 - 149,002
-Glourmwater dualnage 8,506 (3,677) 4,829 24 - (111) 6 - - - 445 9,02S (3.536) 5.t93
- Water supplynetwork 69.216 (32.770) 36,446 683 173 - (1.484) 2303 - - - 3?2 73,13d (34,580) 38.556
-Sewerage itetwork 34.139 (17223) 16.916 296 4 - (G68) 34 - 154 34.797 (15,06t} 16.736
otherassels:

- OIhed St (93) .. - 91 (91) ,,.
Reinstatemerit, rehahIlitation and
restoratlep assets (refer Note 14):

-Tip assets 539 (83) 456 (432) {24) - -- - - - - - ..
-Quarry assets

. ....... ..__... (540L d0 - 4 {55L_ --
_. 2M .

__{G25 JJ1,L
Totalinfrastructure, property, plant
and equipment 711,169 (212,132) 499.037 10.241 4.471 (1.043) (t2,555) - (84) (142) (11.473) 62.124 766,294 (217,981) 550.317

Renewals are de$ned Its the reptncement of exislhig antetr. (as opposed to the acquiplion ofnew zssets).

G) Values have beefirestated- refer nole 37
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

- .. - ..........-..85..81.3 '--,...1.3 .. ...-.. _.-- .. -.-.., ..,- ......, . ....
As m nLa or ng n,s rope 11ngfevied as ni s

Neg Rewh bon Not
Gros4 rphg Accandated caripe Adobons Inror s new Carr pig retum Deprecishan Adpatmer beremerds to Gross see rig Accumdglrd carrywig

.,- ------,,.,---.,-...,-..--.. a = a de coe- I ale ' a se †_qence IPiranu as amisrarefers st If_{A R) m rs.,_. fepfreiaten amrant

CopnalwaitiIn piegreat 8.532 - 4.532 1446 - (2.655) - - 7,123 - 7,123
Plant and equlpment 33.045 (20,708) 12,337 4.233 102 (305) (2,613) - 34.351 (20.597) 13.754
Ofdce equipment 1,655 (1.63D 25 121 15 - (15) 1,801 (1.652) 149
Fumitore and rangs 738 (643) 95 - - - (29) (t} 737 (672) 65
Land:

- Opuelianalland 5.738 - 5,734 - 55 & 5.801 - 5,801

- Communily land 1.485 - t.485 - (55) t.429 - 1.429
LandImprovements -dopreciable 1.561 (357) 1504 11 - (49) - t 1.873 (405) 1,4G7

IItfrastructitre:

- BhNI ps-nort-speciaised 26.127 (15,064) 11,0S3 107 - - (555} - 26.234 (15.619) 10.015
-lkeddlass -specimhnud 57.158 (32,055) 25.100 123 780 - (1,33D 128 (480) 57J09 (33.395) 24.314
-001er structures 21,903 (5 ,245) 13.655 255 1.161 - (639) 280 450 - 24.119 (5.45a 10,232

- Roads ' 270,926 (42.539) 208,387 4,037 251 (4.526) 1,137 - - 276.386 (67.070) 209.316
- BrNfges ' 63474 (6.956) 56.318 20 571 - (466) 127 - - 63,991 (7,422) 56,569
-Footpaths 6.019 (1,591) 4.128 71 229 (13D 216 - - 6,535 (2.028) 4,607
- eulk earthworks (can-depredeble) SB,646 85.646 - - - - (1) 68,645 B5.645

- Stoimwater drainage S.419 (3.557) 4.852 - 54 (110] 3 - - 5,50s (3.677) 4.829
- Water nupply Elelwork 57256 (30.935) 36.315 339 241 (1,316) 304 - 550 69,216 {32170) 36.446
-Sewerage network 32345 (16.350) 16.595 190 16 (603) 450 - 257 34,139 (17423) 16.916
Other asseIsl

-01her 91 (91) - 91 (9I) -Reinstatement.rehabstation and
restorallon assets (refer Note 1611

- Tip assels 359 (GS) 2M - 151 (15) 539 (83) 456
- Quarry a In I.335 (492L 84.3 609

_ _- 8 - 1.94.4 LS40) 1304
Yolal lotrastnicture, properly,
plant andequipment 697.523 (20).008) 495.915 9.536 6.527 (305) (12,454) (2) 825 711,169 (212.132) 499,037

59 Renewals are deked as the replacemeni of existing assets (as opposed101he seqtdsition of new assets).

(21 Vitlaea have beert reslated - refer op1t 17
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Infrastructure property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years. however the carrying amount of assets 1s assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it 1s not materially different from current fair value.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting penod in accordance with the Rates Reference Manual
issued by Department of Industry (Dol) - Water

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class. the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attnbutable to the class all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropnate. only when 11

is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial pened in which they are
mcurred.

When infrastructure. property. plant and equipment are acquired by Council for nil or nominal consideration. the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Land is not depreciated The property. plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset s
useful hfe or over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Council
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost net of their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 5 to 20 Playground equipment 5 to 15

Office furniture 7 to 33 Benches. seats etc. 10 to 20

Computer equipment 4 to 5

Vehicles 5 to 8 Buildings
Heavy plant/road making equipment 7 to 20 Buildings masonry 30 to 90
Other plant and equipment 5 to 30 8uildings. other 15 to 90

Water and sewer assets Stormwater assets
Dams and reservoirs 15 to 200 Drains 80
Bores 20 to 60 Culverts 80
Reticulation pipes 40 to 80

Pumps and telemetry 10 to 80

Treatment plants 15 to 80

Transportation assets Other infrastructure assets
Sealed roads: surface 25 Bulk earthworks Nil

Sealed roads. pavement base 100 Other structures 10 to 70

Sealed roads: pavement sub-base 180 Aerodromes 10 to 60
Jnsealed roads 20 to 25

Bridger concreta 120 Land improvements
Budges other 35 to 80 Land improvements 5 to 50
Kerb. gutter footpaths and causeways 15 to 80

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropnate. at each reporting date.

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths. nature strips and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 In accordance with AASB 1051 Land
Under Roads.
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Note 11. Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land undel roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment.

Crown reserves
Crown reserves under Council s care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. Wni e ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown Council retains operational control of the reserves and 1s responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within CounciFs Income Statement.

Rural Fire service assets
Under Section 119 of the Rural Ftre Services Act 1997 (NSW). all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed'.
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Note 12. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are as follows:

$ '000 2020 2019

Software

Opening values at 1 July
Gross book value 710 710
Accumulated amort1sation (615) (543)
Net book value - opening balance 95 167

Movements for the year

- Other movements

- Amortisation charges (66) (73)

Closing values at 30 June
Gross book value 710 710
Accumulated amortisation (681) (615)

Total software - net book value 29 95

TOTAL INTANGlBLE ASSETS - NET BOOK VALUE 29 95

Accounting policy for intangible assets

IT development and software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs Incurred in acquinng software and licenses that will contnbute to
future penod financial benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reducnon are capitalised to software and systems

Costs capitalised include external direct costs of materials and service direct payroll and payroll related costs of employees
time spent on the project. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over penods generally ranging from three to five
years IT development costs include only those costs directly attnbutable to the development phase and are only recognised
following completion of technical feasibihty. and where Council has an intention and ability to use the asset
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Note 13. Contract assets and liabilities

2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current

(a) Contract assets

Grant Contract Assel 1.627
Other (Accrued Income) 18

Total Contract assets 1 645 -

2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current

(b) Contract liabilities

Grants and contributions received in advance:

Unexpended capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 1 235
Unexpended operating grants (received pnor to performance obligat:on
being satisfied) . 30 -

~Fotal grants received in advance 1,265 -
Total contract liabilities 1 265 -
Notes
0) Council has received funding to construct assets includ ng sporting fachitres. budges library and other infrastructure. The
funds received are under an enforceable contract which require Council to construct an identified asset which will be under
Councifs control on completion. The revenue is recognised as Council constructs the asset and the contract habdity reflects
the funding received which cannot yet be recogn sed as revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12

months

01) The contract liability relates to grants received pnor to the revenue recognition cnteria in AASB 15 being satisfied since
the performance obhgations are ongoing

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
The contract liabilities have ansen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously income received n advance was
recognised for reciprocal contracts. The increase in a contract liability rs pnmanly due to grants in the scope of AASB 15 and
capital grants received by Council to acquire or construct assets which will be under Councifs control Previously revenue
was recognised on receipt of the funds.

Accounting policy for contract assets and liabilities
Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of vanous milestones established in the contract the
amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessanly coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the
customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferr¡ng a promised yeod ur service la the cuslumer before the customer
pays consideration or before the payment is due. Council presents the work in progress as a contract asset unless the rights
to that amount of consideration are unconditional. in which case Council recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring a good or service
to the customer. Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract tiabi!ity.
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Note 14. Leases

The Councit has applied AASB 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related interpretations.

(i) Council as a lessee

Council has leases over a Building asset Information relating to the lease in place and associated balances and
transactions is provided below.

Buildings
Council leases land and buildings for the Coonabarrabran Library. The lease was commenced in December 2019 and is for
a term of 3 years vath an opton to extend for a further 3 years.

The building lease contains an annual pncing mechanism based on either fixed increases or CPI movernents at each
anniversary of the lease inception.

Land and
$ '000 Buildings Total

(a) Right of use assets

Opening balance at 30 June 2019

Additions to right-of-use assets 295 295
Depreciation charge (49) (49)
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 246 246

2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease hab111ties 45 223

TOTAL LEASE LIABILITIES 45 223

(i) The maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below

Total per
Statement of

Financial
$ '000 < 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years Total Position

Cash flows 45 2nn 23 268 268
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Note 14. Leases (continued)

$ '000 2020

(c) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

Interest on lease habihties 6

Depreciation of nght of use assets

55

(d) Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases
. .. ..

p2

32

Accounting policy

Accounting policies under AASB 16 - applicable from 1 July 2019
At Inception of a contract. Counch assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the nyht lo contral the use
of an identified asset for a penod of time in exchange for considerat1on?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement. Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liabihty for the lease term. The
lease term Includes extension periods where Council bel eves It is reasonably certain that the opton will be exercised

The nght-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on init al recognit on compnses: the lease Ilabihty. initial
direct costs. prepaid lease payments. estimated cost of removaf and restoraton. less any lease incentives. The nght-of-use
Is deprec ated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the Impairment
of asset accounting policy.

The lease liabitty is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate s the rate implicit in the lease however where this cannot be readily determined then the CounciFs
Incremental borrowing rate for a simtfar term with similar secunty is used

Subseouent to initial recognition. the lease habŒty Is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method The
lease liabdity is re-measured when there is a lease modification. or change In estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured the nght-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement

Accounting policy under AASB 117 and associated Accounting Interpretations (2019 only)
Refer to Note Sc and Note 15.
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Note 14. Leases (continued)

(ii) CounCil as a lessor

(in Council as a lessor

Leases at significantly below market value - Concessionary / peppercorn leases

Council has a number of leases at signihcantly below market for land and buddings which are used for --

• Camp ground

• Community tialls

• Tennis courts

- Pre schools

• Men s sheds

The leases are generally between 2 and 20 years and tequire payments of a max mum amount of $509 per year Council
does not believe that any of the leases in place are individually material from a statement of hnancial position or performance
perspective.
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Note 15. Payables and borrowings

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Payables
Goods and services 413 556
Accrued expenses.

- Borrowings 56 10

- Salanes and wages 169

- Other expenditure accruals 558 - 728

Security bonds deposits and retentions 753 728
Other 76 16

Prepaid rates

Total payables 2.025 - 2,038

Borrowings
Loans - secured 966 2.931 795 3.870
Total borrowings 966 2.931 795 3.870

TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 2,991 2.931 2.833 3,870

Loans are secured over the general rahog income of Council.
Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures fair value disclosures and secunty can be found in Note 22.

$ '000 2020 2019

(a) Current payables and borrowings not anticipated to be settled within the
next twelve months

The following liabilities even though classified as current are not expected to be settled in

the next 12 months.

Payables - secunty bonds deposits and retentions 753
Total payables and borrowings 753 -

continued on next page .. Page 42 of 83



Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 15. Payables and borrowingS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

as at 30/06/19 Non-cash changes as .tt 30 05 /20

Laans ··.· secured 4 66 (7G81 - - - - 3 307

TOTAL 4.665 (768) - 3 897

. .

as at 30i06t18 Non-cash changes as at 30/06/19

Open ng Fan value Othel non-cash closing
5 '000 Balance Cash flows Acqui s i tion changes movemem halance

Loans - secured 5.644 (9791 - 4.565
TOTAL 5.644 (979) - - - 4,665

$ '000 2020 2019

(c) Financing arrangements

(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following
lines of credit:

Bank overdraft facilities 500 500
Credit cards/purchase cards 79 79
Total financing arrangements 579 579

Drawn facilities as at balance date:

- Credit cards/purchase cards 33 39

Total drawn financing arrangements 33 39

Undrawn facilities as at balance date:

- Bank overdraft facihties 500 500

- Credit cards/purchase cards 46 40
Total undrawn financing arrangements 546 540

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defaults
During the current and pror year. there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans.

The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank wdhout notice.
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Note 15. Payables and borrowings (continued)

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Council measures an financial liabilities initialty at fair value less transaction costs. subsequently financial hab:Iities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabht es of the Council compose trade payables bank and other loans.

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided lo the council prior to the end of financial year that are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initrally recognised at fair value. net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redempton amount is recognised in

the income Statement over the pened of the borrowings using the effective-interest method Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facihties are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facihty
will be drawn down. in this case. the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or ah of the facility wiH be drawn down. the fee is capitahsed as a prepayment for hquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facihty to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Positon when the obhgaton specthed In the contract is discharged.
cancelled of expired The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid. including any non-cash assets transferred or habihties assumed is
recognised in other income or finance cost

Borrowings are classifted as current liabihties unless Council has an unconditional r ght to defer settlement of the hability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Note 16. Provisions

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

ProvisionS

Employee benefits

Annual leave 1.338 - L430
Long service leave 2.691 - 2.619
Other leave 67 - 71

ELE on-costs 551 - 326
Sub-total -aggregate employee benefits 4 647 - 4.446

Asset remediation/restoration:
Asset remediation/restoration (future works) 3.102 - 3.175
Sub-total - asset remediation/restoration - 3.102 - 3.175

TOTAL PROVIS?NS 4 647 3,102 4.446 3 175

S '000 2020 2019

(a) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve
rnonths

The foHowing provisions. even though classified as current. are not expected to be settled
in the next 12 months.

Provisions - employees benefits 3 375 3.035

3,375 3.035
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Note 16. Provisions (continued)

(b) Description of and movements in non-employee benefit provisions

Other provisions

Asset
Total5 'o00 remediation

2020
At beginning of year 3. 175 3.175
Remeasurement effec s (149) (149)
Unwinding of discount 76

Total ottler provisions at end of year 3.102 3.102

2019

At beg nning of year 2 299 2.299
Remeasurement effects 791 791

Unwinding of discount 85 85
folal other provisions at end of year 3.175 3.175

Nature and purpose of non-employee benefit provisions

Asset remediation
Council has a legal/public obligation to make restore. rehabilitate and reinstate the councils and pnvate gravel quarries it
has used.

Accounting policy for provisions
Provisions are recognised when Councd has a present legal or constructive obligaton as a result of past events it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligaton and the amount has been reliably estimated

Vvhere there are a number of similar obligations the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligat?ns as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obhgations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obhgat?n at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as borrowing costs.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Ltabilities for wages and salanes (including non-monetary benefits. annual Feave and accumulating sick leave expected to be

wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the pened in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting pened and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled The liabi[ity for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other shod-term employee benefit obligatons are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The fiability fer long-service leave and annual leave that is hot expected to 'ue wlioily settled within 12 munihs after the end of
the pened in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reportng penod using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salany levels.
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to matunty and currency that match. as closely as
possible. the estimated future cash outflows.
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Note 16. Provisions (continued)

On-costs

The employee benefit provrsions include the aggregate on-cost habihties that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation. payroll tax and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting pened.

The obligations are presented as current habilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement
is expected to occur.

Provisions for close-down and restoration, and environmental clean-up costs - tips and quarries

Restoration
Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure. and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restorahon costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obhgation arising from the related disturbance occurs whether this occurs during the development or dunng the
operation phase. based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to anse from
future disturbance. The costs are est mated on the basis of a closure plan The cost estimates are calculated annually during
the life of the operation to reflect known developments. e g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of
operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

Rehabilitation
Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the h!e of the operation. rather than at the time of closur e. provision
1s made for the estimated outstanding contmuous rehabihtat?n work at each reporhng date. and the cost is charged to the
Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-upobhgations outstanding at the report ng
date These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions are presented
as an operating Cost eXCept for the unwind ng of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost.

Remediation procedures generahy commence soon after the lime the damage. remediation process and est1mated
remediation costs become known. but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the
remediation techniques.

As noted above the ultimate cost of environmental remediat on is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors. including changes to the relevant legal requirements the emergence of new restoration techniques or expenence at
other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves
or production rates As a result. there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and
environmental clean-up, which would affect future financiaf resuits.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs. including those resulting from new disturbance.
updated cost estimates. changes to the estimated hves of operations and revisions to discount rates. are capitahsed within
property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.

Close-down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of quarry operations. and the majority of close-down and
restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the hfe of the operations. Although the ultimate cost to be incurred ts uncertain.
Council estimates the respective cocts based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restorat·on standards and
techniques.

Self-insurance
Council has decided to self-insure for various nsks including public liability and professional indemnity. A provision for
self-Insurance has been made to recognise outstanding claims. Council also maintains cash and FnvestmentS to meet
expected future claims: refer to Note 7(c).
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Note 17. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure. property. plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments / decrements of
non-current asset values due to their revaluation

(b) Correction of errors relating to a previous reporting period

Nature of prior-period error
As part of its valuation cycle. Council found causeway and culvert assets which were previously not recorded in the roads
and bridges asset registers respectively. The impact of recognising these assets resulted in an increase of S11.220 m@on
to infrastructure Property. Plant and equipment assets within the Statement of FFnancial Position as at 30 June 2018.
Dereciation expense of S264 thousand was understated in the Income Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019. resulting
in an adjustment to the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019 of of S10.956 million.

The errors identifted above have been corrected by restating the balances at the beginning of the earhest pened presented (1

July 2018) and taking the adjustment through to accumulated surplus at that date.

Comparatives have been changed to reflect the correcton of errors. The impact on each line item is shown in the tables below.

Changes to the opening statement of Financial Position at 1 July 2018

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated
Balance increase/ Balance

S '000 1 July, 2018 (decrease) 1 July, 2018

Infrastructure. Property Plant and Equipment 484.694 11.220 495 914
Total assets 509,702 11,220 520,922

Net assets 494,910 11,220 506,130

Accumulated Surplus 408 050 11.220 419.270
Revaluation Reserve 86.860 - 86.860
Total equity 494,910 11,220 506,130

Adjustments to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated
Balance increase/ Balance

S '000 30 June, 2019 (decrease) 30 June, 2019

Infrastructure Property Plant and Equ pment 488.081 10.956 499.037
Total assets 510,961 10,956 521,917

Net assets 496,637 10,956 507,593

Accumulated Surplus 408.952 10 956 419.908
Revaluation Reserves 87.685 - 87.685
Total equity 496,637 10,956 507,593
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Note 17. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Income Statement

Original Impact Restated
Balance increase/ Balance

5 '000 30 June, 2019 (decrease) 30 June, 2019

Total income from continuing operations 43,515 - 43,515

Depreciation and amortisation 12.267 264 12.531
Total expenses from continuing operations 42,613 264 42,877

Net operating result for the year 902 (264) 638

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Original Impact Restated
Balance Increase/ Balance

$ '000 30 June, 2019 (decrease) 30 June, 2019

Net operating result for the year 902 (264) 638

Gain (loss) on revaluaton of IPP&E 825 - 825
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,727 (264) 1,463

(c) Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of new accounting standards
(not-retrospective)

During the year ended 30 June 2020 the Council has adopted AASB 15 Revenue hom Contracts willi Customers, AASB
1058 Income of Not-for-probi Entities and AASB 16 /..eases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method
and therefore the comparative informat?n for the year ended 30 June 2019 has not been restated and continues to comply
with AASB 111 Constntation Contracts, AASB 117 teases. AASB 118 Revenue. AASB 1004 Contrmurions and associated
Accounting Interpretations.

All adjustments on adopton of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained earnings at 1 July 2019.

The impacts of adopting these standards and associated transitan disclosures are provided below

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position

(ii) AASB 15 and AASB 1058

The following approach has been apphed on transition to AASB 15 and AASB 1058:

• Council has not adopted the completed contract expedient and therefore has not excluded revenue which was fully
recognised in previous years in accordance with the former accounting standards and pronouncements

• Council has retrospectively restated contracts for modificatons that occurred before 1 July 2019 unless such contract
modification were minor.

Transfer of control to a customer - over time or at a point in time
AASB 15 has specific cnteria regarding whether control is transferred over time or at a point in time. The entity has reviewed
its contracts and concluded that the criteria for recognition over time is not met in some circumstances. in such cases
revenue and related production costs will be recognised at the delivery of each separate performance obligation instead of
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Note 17. ACCumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, Changes in aCCounting policies,
Changes in aCCounting estimates and errors (continued)

over the contract using a single margin.

Principal v agent
Prior to adoption of AASB 15 the Council had assessed that they were a principal in transactions where another party was
involved in providing the goods or services including pass-through grants

Under AASB 15. the indicators of a pnncipal have changed and there are now a number of performance obligations within
grant agreements where the Council is acting as an agent since the only obligatron is to transfer the funds to a third party.
The result s that Council can only recognise the commission to wh ch they are entitled rather than the gross revenue and
expenses. There is no change to reported profit.

Licences
Council has reviewed the licences it grants and considers that all licences are either short-term or tow value and elects to
recognise all revenue from licences up-front rather than spreading them over the life of the heence

Prepaid rates
Under AASB 1004. rates were recorded as revenue at the earliest of receipt of the funds from the ratepayer and the
beginning of the rating pened. Under AASB 1058. prepaid rates are recogn sed as a financial liabdity until the beginning of
the rating period.

Grants - operating
Under AASB 1004. most grant income was recognised as revenue on receipt Under AASB 15. where an agreement ts
enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations, the revenue is either recognised over time as the
work is performed or recognised at the point in time that the control of the services passes to the customer.

Grants - capital
lJnder AASB 1004. most grant monies were recorded as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058 wheie Council has
received assets (including cash) to acquire or construct a non-financial asset the asset is to be controned by Council and
the contract is enforceable then the asset is recognised as a contract habihty on receipt and recorded as revenue as the
performance obligation to acquire or construct the asset is completed.

Changes in presentation
In addition to the above changes in accounting pohcies. the Council has also amended the presentation of certa1n items to
align them with the requirements of AASB 15 and AASB 1058

• Movement of balances between receivables and contract assets.
- Additional hne Items of contract assets and contract habihties have been created

Balance at
S '000 1 July 2019

Opening contract balances at 1 July 2019

Contract assets

- Under AASB 1058 527
Total Contract assets 527

Contract liabilities
- Under AASB 1058 210
Total Contract liabilities 210

Comparison of financial statement line items under AASB 15 compared to previous standards for the
current year

The following tables show the impact of adopting AASS 15 and AASB 1058 on the Council s financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2020.
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Note 17. Accumulated surplus, revaluation reserves, changes in accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Statement of Financial Position

Carrying
amount per

Statement of Carrying
Financial amount under

Position under previous
AASB 15 and Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue

S '000 AASB 1058 ation ement standards Notes

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6.859 - 6.859
investments 11 500 - 11.500
Receivables 3 766 1 265 - 5.031
Inventories 725 - - 725
Contract assets 1 645 (1 265) - 380
Other 53 53
Current assets classified as held for sale 142 142

Total current assets 24.690 - 24,690

Current liabilities
Payables 2.025 - - 2 025
Contract flabilities 1.265 - (1.265)
Lease liabihttes 45 45

Borrowings 966 966
Provtsions .4 647 4.647
Total current liabilities 8.948 - (1.265) 7,683

Non-current assets
Inventones 299 - - 299
Infrastructure. property plant and
equipment 550.317 - 550 317

Intangible assets 29 - 29

Right of use assets 24E 246
Investments accounted for ustng equity
method 444 - - 444
Total non-current assets 551.335 - - 551,335

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 223 - 223

Borrowings 2.931 - - 2.931
Provisions 3.102 - 3.102
Total Non-current liabilities 6,256 - - G.256

Net assets 560,821 - 1 265 562.086

Equity
Accumulated surplus 422 485 - 1.265 423.750
Revaluation reserveS 138.336 - - 138.336
Council equity interest 560.821 - 1.265 562.086

Total equity 560,821 1 265 562.086
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changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Income Statement

Income Income
Statement and Statement and

comprehen- comprehen-
sive income sive income

under AASB 15 under previous
and AASB Reclassific- Remeasur- revenue

$ *000 1058 ation ement standards Notes

Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 13 844 - - 13.844
User charges and fees 6.066 - - 6.066
Other revenues 2.137 - - 2.137
Grants and contributions provided for

operating purposes 16.121 - - 16.121
Grants and contributions provided for

capital purposes 3 775 1.055 4.830
Interest and investment ncome 460 -- -- 460
Net gains from the disposal of assets 599 -- - 599
Net share of interests in joint ventures and
associates using the equity method 44 - - 44
Total Income from continuing
operations 43,046 - 1.055 44,101

Expenses from continuing_operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 14 929 -- 14.929

Borrowing costs 307 - - 307
Matenals and contracts 7.185 - 7.185
Depreciation and amortisat on 12 970 - - 12.970
Other expenses 5 395 - 5.395
Total Expenses from continuing
operations 40.786 - 40.786

Total Operating result from
continuing operations 2.260 - 1,055 3.315

Net operating result for the year 2.260 - 1.055 3 315

Total comprehensive income 52.911 - 1,055 53.966

Under Previous standards the contract Liability would have been treated as grant income in the current year.
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changes in accounting estimates and errors (continued)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2020

Cash flows
under previous

Reclassific- revenue
$ '000 ation standards

Operating activities
Grants and Contnbutions 317 317

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position

Original Impact Restated
Balance Increase/ Balance

$ '000 1 July, 2019 (decrease) 1 July, 2019

Contract assets - 527 527
Total assets - 527 527

Contract habihties - 210 210
Total liabilities - 210 210

Accumulated surplus - 317 317
Total equity - 317 317

(iii) AASB 16 Leases

Council as a lessee
Under AASB 117 Counch assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the
significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to Couned or remained with the lessor. Under AASB 16 there
is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all leases which meet the definiton of
a lease are recognised on the statement of financial posit?n (except for short-term leases and leases of lov6value assets).

Council has used the excephon to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. and the lease
expense relating to these leases is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight- hne basis.

Practical exped ents used on transit?n
AASB 16 includes a number of practical expedients wh ch can be used on transition. Council has used the fohowing expedients

- Contracts which had previously been assessed as not containing leases under AASB 117 were not re-assessed on
transition to AASB 16.

- Lease liabilities have been discounted using the Council s incremental borrow ng rate at 1 July 2019.
• Right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019 have been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjustment by the any

prepaid or accrued lease payments.
- A single discount rate was applied to ah leases with similar charactenstics.
• The right-of-use asset was adjusted by the existing onerous lease provision (where relevant) at 30 June 2019 rather

than perform impairment testing of the nght-of-use asset
- Excluded leases with an expiry date pnor to 30 June 2020 from the Statement of Financial Position. and lease expenses

for these leases have been recorded on a straight-hne basis over the remaining term
• Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16

Council has not recognised any right-of-use assets and lease liabihties as at 1 July 2019 for leases previously classified as
operating leases or leases that are significantly below market value which were previously off balance sheet
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Note 18. Statement of cash flow information

$ '000 2020 2019

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 6.859 4.738
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 6,8S9 4.738

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from
operating activities

Net operating result from Income Statement 2,260 638
Adjust for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisaton 12,970 12.531
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets (599) (999)
Non-cash capital grants and contnbutons (714) (48)
Adoption of AASB 15/1058 317

Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions 76 85
Share of nel (prohts)/losses of assoaates/joint ventures using the equity method (44) (15)

+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables (458) 2 490
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables 193 164

Decrease/(tncrease) in inventories 33 (20)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 36 131

Decrease/(increase) in contract assets (1.645) -
Increase/(decrease) in payables (143) (93)
increase/(decrease) in accrued interest payable 46 (32)
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable (1) 16

Increase/(decrease) in other Ilabthties 85 (172
increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 1 265 -
Increase/(decrease) In provision for employee benefits 201 (84)
Increase/(decrease) in othei provisions (149t 91

Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities
from the Statement of Cash Flows 13.729 15.383

(c) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Asset contributtons 714 595
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 714 595
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Councirs share of net income CounciFs share of net assets
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

Joint ventures 44 15 444 400
Total 44 15 444 400

Joint arrangements

(i) Joint ventures
The following information is provided for joint ventures that are individually material to the Council. Included are the total
amounts as per the foint venture financial statements. adjusted for fair-value adjustments at acquisrtion date and differences
in accounting policies rather than the Council's share.

(a) Net carrying amounts - Council s share

Nature of Measurement
S '000 relationship method 2020 2019

Macquane Regional Library Joint venture Equity 444 400
Total carrying amounts - material joint ventures 444 400

(b) Details

Place of
Principal activity business

Macquane Reg?nal Library Community library services Dubbo. Coolah
Dunedoo
Coonabarabran
Narromine and
Wellington

(c) Relevant interests and fair values

Interest in Interest in Proportion of
outputs ownership voting power

S '000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Macquarie Regional Library 20.0% 20.1% 20.0% 20.1% 25.0 25.0%
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(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Macquarie Regional Library
$ '000 2020 2019

Statement of financial position
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.860 1.598
Other current assets 73 19

Non-current assets 1.244 1.246
Current liabilities
Other current habilities 809 690
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisons) 22 49
Net assets 2 346 2.124

Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July) 2.124 2.049
Profi?loss) for the pened 222 75

Closing net assets 2.346 2 124

Council's share of not assets (%) 20.0% 20.1%
Council's share of net assets ($) 469 426
Statement of comprehensive income
Income 2.983 2.962
Interest income 23 45
Depreciaton and amortisaton (390) (340)
Other expenses (2.394) (2.593)
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 222 74

Profit/(foss) for the period 222 74

Total comprehensive income 222 74

Share of income - Council (%) 20.0% 20.1
Profit/(loss) - Council ($) 44 15
Total comprehensive income - Council ($) 44 15

Reconciliation

Reconciliation of carrying amount of interest in joint venture to summarised financial information for individually material joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method.

Current year end $'000 Prior year end S 000
Share of 20.0% (20.1%) of net assets 469 426

Adjustment to share (25) (26)

Carrying amount 444 400
Fair value of investment (if there is a quoted pnce) 444 426
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Accounting policy for joint arrangements
The council has deterrnined that it has joint ventures only.

Joint ventures:

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with AASB128 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures.

Under this method the investment is initially recognised as a cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the Council s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture after the date of
acquisition.

If the Councifs share of tosses of a Joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the Joint venture. the Council discontinues
recognising its share of further losses.

The Councifs share in the joint venture s gains or losses arising from transactions between riself and its joint venture are
eliminated

Adjustments are made to the joint venture s accounting pobcies where they are different from those of the Council for the
purposes of the consolidated financial statements
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Note 20. Commitments

$ '000 2020 2019

(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financ al statements as liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings 53 236
Plant and equipment 363 201

infrastructure 1.620 765
Total commitments 2,036 1,202

These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year 2,036 1.202
Total payable 2.036 1,202

Details of capital commitments

The Council has committed to vanous capital projects which mainly includes information technology. regional roads sporting
facilities. council properties town streets. water and sewer over the next 12 months.

S'000 2020 2019

(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments (2019 only)

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting
date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next yeal 22

Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments - 22

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:
Council had leased computer servers. photocopy machines and a library building in Coonabatabran. A new lease for office
equipment has not been negotiated.

Refer to Note 14 for information relating to leases for 2020.
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Note 21. Contingencies

The following assets and habilities do not qualify for recognit?n in the Statement of Financial Posit?n but their knowledge
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees

(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans
Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuat?n Scheme. named The Local
Government Superannuation Scheme - Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been deemed to be a

multi-employer fund for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons

- Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

- The contnbut?n rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is. contnbuton rates have not vaned for each
sponsoring employer according to the expenence relating to the employees of that sponsonng employer.

- Benefits for employees of all sponsormg employers are determined according to the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

- The same actuanal assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsonng employer.

Given the factois above. each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuanal nsks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers. and hence shares in the assocrated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members).

Desenpt n of the funding arrangements

Pooled employers are required to pay standard employer contnbutions and additional lump sum contributions to the fund.

The standard employer contributons were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate
sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working fife-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current standard
employer contnbuton rates are

Division B 1.9 times employee contributons
Divison C 2.5% salaries
Division D 1.64 times employee contributions

The additional lump sum contributon for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total additonal contributions of S40 mill?n
per annum from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2021 apportioned according to each employer's share of the accrued liabilities as at
30 June 2019. These additional lump sum contributions are used to fund the deficit of assets to accrued liabilities

The adequacy of contributons is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between triennials.

Descri;Mion of the e X lent to which Council can be itable to the plan for other Councti s obligat?ns uncler the terms and conditmns
of the multhemployer plan

As stated above. each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuariat nsks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses

However there is no relief under the Fund s trust deed for empinyers in walk away frnm their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances. an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members. on full payment
of outstanding additional contnbutions. There is no provision for allocaton of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Funds trust deed deahng with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Govemment Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2020 was $ 121.728.S8 The last valuation of the Scheme was
performed by Mr Richard Boyfield. FIAA as at 30 June 2019.
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Councifs expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $111 614.20.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2020 is:

Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
Assets 1,695.2
Past Service Liabilities 1,773.2 95.6%
l\/ested Benefits100.4 1,757.5 96.5%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

The share of this deficit that is broadly attributed to Council is estimated to be in the order of $76,900 as at 30 June 2020.

Councils share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Councirs accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to correct
the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

investment return 5.75% per annum
Salary inflation 3.5% per annum
Increase in CPI 2.5% per annum

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the actuarial
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

(ii) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to local govemment.

Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund depending on its past performance.
Councirs share of the net assets or Iiabilities reflects Councirs contributions to the pool and the result of insurance claims
within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of claims incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result in future liabilities or
benefits as a result of past events that Council will be required to fund or share in respectively.

(iii) StateCover Limited

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry and
- soecifically Council.

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company's capital base as a
result of the company's past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company's minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

(ly) Other guarantees

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
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2. Other liabilities

(i) Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time In various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liabilities to eventuate.

(ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council

Council has classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open space or bushland.

As a result, where notified in writing by the various owners, Council will be required to purchase these land parceIs.

At reporting date, reliable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent land asset) from such potential
acquisitions has not been possible.

(iii) Potential Liability relating to the TRRRC development

Council received funding from State and Federal governments to construct the Three Rivers Regional Retirement Community
(TRRRC). After tendering the project, Council engaged a contractor to undertake the construction of the facility. The contract
with the contractor was terminated on 2 August 2018 due to default of contract. The contractor has listed the matter for
consideration through the Supreme Court, which is being defended by Council. This action may lead to a future liability which
at this stage is unable to be determined. Council has resolved to prefer an option to demolish all partially completed units, and
seek permission from the two funding bodies to utilise remaining funding for site infrastructure and civil works relating to the
project in possible readiness for construction of a smaller number of units if future funding is forthcoming.
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Note 22. Financial risk management

Risk management

Council s activities expose it to a variety of financial nsks including (1) pnce nsk. (2) credit risk. (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate risk.

The Council s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactFOnS eXpreSSed in foreign currencies and ts therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carned out by Councts finance section under policies approved by the Council.

The fair value of Council s financial assets and financial habihties approximates their carrying amount

Carrying value Carrying value Fair value Fair value
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 6.859 4 730 6.859 10.738
Receivables 3.766 3 501 3.679 3.501
Investments

-- Financial assets at amortised cost 11.500 13.000 11.500 7,000
Total financial assets 22.125 21.239 22,038 21.239

Financial liabilities
Payables 2 025 2.038 2.01 / .038
Borrowings 3 897 4.655 3.897 4 665
Lease habilities 268 - 268
Total financial liabilities 6,190 6.703 6.182 6.703

Fair value is determined as follows

- Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables - are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates market
value.

• Borrowings and held-to-maturity investments -are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
mkt interest rates applicable to assets and liabihties with similar nsk profiles. unless quoted market prices are availab e.

Councirs objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments wh ist maintaining an adequate level of hquidity and
preserving capital

Councds finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisors.

Council has an investment pohcy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Mtnrster s investment order 625.
This pobcy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report Es tabled before Council on a monthly basis
setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance as required by Local Government regulations.

The risks associated with the instruments held are.

- Price risk - the nsk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes In market pnces whether
there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market

- Interest rate risk - the nsk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and ncome.

• Liquidity risk - the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due

continued on next pace .. Page 61 of 83



Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 22. Financial risk management (continued)

- Credit risk - the nsk that the investment counterparty Wtil not complete their obligat ons particular to a financial
instrument. resulting In a financial loss to Council - be it of a capital or income nature

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash equivalents and investments

(a) Market risk - price risk and interest rate risk

The impact on resun for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the pnce of investments held and interest
rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements were determined based on historical movements and economic
conditions in place at the reporting date.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
$ '000 Profit Equity Profit Equity

2020
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 150 150 (150) (150)

2019

Possible impact of a 1% movement n Interest rates 177 177 (177)
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Note 22. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk

Councifs major receivables compose rates and annual charges and other receivables The latter compnses of accrued income
for government grants user charges and fees Interest and extra charges. other debtors.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit nsk - the nsk that debts due and payable to Council may not be

repaid In fult Council manages this risk by monitonng outstanoing debt and employing stringent debt recovery policies

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk. whether through exposure to individual customers. specific industry sector
and/ or regions.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as requ red based on the lifetime expected credit loss at each
reporting date.

A profile of Council s receivables credit usk at the reporting date follows

Credit risk profile

Receivables - rates and annual charges
Credit nsk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debts - that is the land can be sold to recover the debt Council is also able to charge !nterest on overdue raters and annual
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

Not yet < 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 5 years > 5 years
S '000 overdue overduo overdue overdue overdue Total

2020

Gioss carrying amount - 1.3G7 85 158 -- 1510

2019
Gross canying amount 1 274 19() 1 4G4

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges
Council applies the simphfted approach for non-rates and annuaf charges debtors to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by AASB 9. which permits the use of the Itfetime expected toss provision. To measure the expected credit losses.
non-rates and annual charges debtors have been grouped based on shared credit risk charactenstics and the days past due

The loss allowance prov;ston as at 30 June 2020 is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate lorward-
looking information.

Not yet 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days > 91 days
S '000 overdue overdue overdue overdue overdue Total

2020
Gross carrying amount 1.431 805 21 2 550 2.809
Expected loss rate UK1 1.00% 2.00% 10.00% 24.00% 68.80% 14.65%
ECL provision 14 16 2 - 378 410

2019
Gross canying amoun! 1.851 90 297 18 241 2 497
Expected loss rate in) 1.00% 200% 10.00% 20.00% 34.00% 5.54%
ECL provision 19 5 30 4 82 140
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Note 22. Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables lease habilities and borrowings are both subject to liqu:dity nsk - the risk that insufhcient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council managés this risk by monitonng its cash flow requirements and hquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utihsed as required

Borrowings are also subject to Interest rate risk - the nsk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous
to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liab lities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing Of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed m the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease habrhties and therefore the
balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Posman due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted
average Subject payable in: Actual
interest to no 1 - 5 Total cash carrying

. = 1 Year > 5 Years
S '000 rate maturity Years outflows values

2020

Trade/other payables 0.00% 753 1.264 2 017 2.025

Borrowings 4 70% - 966 2.931 3 897 3,897
Total financial liabilities 753 2.230 2,931 - 5,914 5.922

2019

Trade/other payables 0.00% 728 1.310 - 2 038 2.038

Barrowings 4.70% - 795 3.396 474 4.665 4 665
Total financial liabilities 728 2,105 3.396 474 6.703 S.703
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Note 23. Material budget variationS

CouncŒs onginal financial budget for 19/20 was adopted by the Counci[ on 20/06 2019 and is unaudited.

While the Income Statement included in this Generaf Purpose Financial Statements must disclose the onginal budget adopted
by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget on a quarterly basis. so that it is
able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that Invanably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council s onginal budget and its actual results for the year as

per the Income Statement - even though such variations may have been adjusted for during each quarterly budget review.

Material vanations represent those variances between the original budget figure and the actual result that amount to 10%
or more.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget vanation. U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2020 2020 2020
$ '000 Budget Actual -- Variance ---

REVENUES

User charges and fees 8,796 6,066 (2,730) (31)% U

$2 278k RMCC contiact works down
S383k quarry revenues down

Other revenues 1,338 2,137 799 60% F

Mainly due to sale proceeds of $786K for sale of Council s share in Southern Phone Company Ltd

Capital grants and contributions 3,137 3,775 638 20% F

Capital grants not budgeted for 2019/20 (a) RFS $769k and (b) Drought communities round 3 capital projects S251k

Net gains from disposal of assets 246 599 353 143% F

Sales revenues on plant and equipment were better than anticipated

EXPENSES

Borrowing costs 195 307 (112) (57)% U

Onginal budget was understated and also missed lease costs.

Materials and contracts 8,051 7,185 866 11% F

Variation is a net result of various expenditure items but mainly due to iower RMCC contracts costs

Other expenses 8,502 5,395 3,107 37% F

Since 2018/19. Councd has ceased Its in kind allocation to RFS. Thts was not factored into the original budget

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities 11,698 13,729 2.031 17% F

The key vanations are the same for revenue and expenditure above.

Cash flows from investing activities (12,604) (10,813) 1,791 (14)% F

Increased Grants enabled Council to retain more cash investments than budgeted.

Cash flows from financing activities (913) (795) 118 (13)% F

Pnncipal loan repayments were budgeted higher than required
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis

- Infrastructure, property. plant and equipment

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with vanous accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a lever in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for idenucal assets or habdities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabihty. either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liabihty that ar e not based on observable market date (unobservable inputs)

(1) Assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at fair values

Fair value measuromont hierarchy

Level 1 Level2 Level3
Date of Quoted Significant Significant

2020 latest pHcos in obsena unobscm
valuation active mkts inputs ablo inputs Total

Recurring fair value measurements
infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment 30:06tc - 14.545 14.545
Off1Ce eQUIpment 30.·o6·20 - 228 228
Furnituie and fittrnqs 30,00 20 - 36 36

Land -- Community 30/06 G -- 74 1.355 1.429
1.and - Operational 30,06 2.981 3.034 6.015
Land mprovements - depreciaue 30,06. G - - 1,616 1£10
Buildings 30/06 r - -- 33,738 33 738
Other structures 30 06 G - - 15.699 15.699
Roads 30 ceae - 200.885 200 885
Bridges 30 06/20 -- - 52.145 52 145

Footpaths 3D 00,20 - 5,233 5 233
Butk earthwoiks 30 osco - - 149.002 149.002
Stormwater drainage 30 o3.20 .. ... 5.193 5.193
Water supply network 30 06m -- 38.556 38.556
Sewerage network 30 ce; 7 - 16,736 16.736
Tip assets 30 96;20 - - - -
Quarry assets 30men9 - - 1,811 1.811

Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment - 3.055 539.812 S42,867
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level3
Date of Quoted Significant Significant

latest prices in observable unobserv-
valuation active mkts inputs able inputs Total

Restated Restated

Recurring fair value measurements
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and equiprnent 30/06 19 - - 13.754 13.754
Office ecuipment 3o,c6 9 149 149
Fumrture and fittings 3ooc 19 65 65

l and - Community ao-asne 74 1.355 1.429
Land - Operahonal au as us -- 2.-21 3.080 5 801
Land impf ovements - depreciable 30;C6 16 - - 1.467 1 467
Buddings 70,06n6 34.929 34 929
Others1ructu es 3ofas 16 10.232 15.232
Roads 30/0915 - 209.316 209.316
Bridges 30 as,1s - - 56.5G9 56.569
Footpaths 3n G/15 - 4.507 4.507
Bulk ea1tliworks 30 06/15 88.045 88,646
Stormwaler drainage myo . 4.829 4.829
Watet supply network 30. . .. 3G 446 36.44G
Sewerage network 30/0cn7 16.910 16.916
Tip assets 306 450 456
Quarry assets 30,00 9 -- 1.404 1 404
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 2 795 489.119 491.914

Note tha! capital WIP is not induded above since it 1s camed m cost

(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies

Dudng the year. there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair value
measurements

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

Where Council is unable to denve fan valuations using quoted market pnces of identicat assets de. leve[ 1 inputs) Councd
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs devel 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs)

The fair valuation techniques Counch has employed while ut:Iising tevel 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

Plant and equipment, office equipment and furniture, fixtures and fittings
Plant and equipment. office equipment and fumiture and fixtures and fittings are all valued at deprecIated cost (original
purchase price) as this assessment 18 considered to approximate faFF Value.

Roads. bulk earthworks, bndges. tootpaths and stormwater drainage
The values currently displayed are based on the fo[[owing
The current replacement cost for these asset classes has been denved from a 2019/20 valuation survey undertaken for this
purpose, by AssetVal Valuers. All asset are assigned useful lives except for bulk earthworks and are condition rated at the
time of valuation effective as at 30 June 2020.
Roads are componentised into pavement and surface w th pavements split into sealed and unseated road pavements. A
distinction is also made between road pavements on regional. local and urban. Roads also include causeways and k.erb and
gutter.
Bridges are componentised into bridges sub-structure. super-structure and deck and major culverts.
Stormwater drainage assets include both pits and pipes.
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Quarry and tip remediation habilit es
Council recognises remediation assets for quarnes under its control. These assets are based on the estimated cost to
remediate the sites at the end of their useful hfe. Estimated remed aton costs are based on engineenng assessments and
take into account the inputs needed to rehabihtate the quarry/tip sites. As the final remediation will not happen for several
years the input costs are indexed out to the estimated remediation date through the use of CPI and then discounted back to
arnve at the present value with the discount rate being the ten year government bond rate. No estimate is made for potential
mcreases m rehabilitation scope in future years as such changes can not be reliably measured Further details on these assets
can be found in nota 11.

Council has ceased to recognise tip remediation asset based on m-house review conducted dunng 2019/20 due to following
factors
a) Capping/ctosure of cell in 5 years time - Capping of waste ceH is being undedaken every year for the part of cell which
has been used The cost of capping s charged as operational expenditure on as we go basis. Therefore. although the cell will
be fully capped/closed in 5 years time i e. in 2025 but it would be only that part of celf that wdl be used in that year
b) Closure of Coonabarabran waste site - Based on recent survey/study conducted by Waste Services it is estimated that
the remaining life of Coonabarabran waste site Is 45 years. However. Couned is not aware of any obligation where Council
has to restore/remediate the site at the end of 45 years. Council will be putting new cells and closing them as part of waste
operations dunng the next 45 years as discussed above but will not be hable to restore the site at the end of useful life

Operatonal and community land
Land has been valued at market value. having regard to the "highest and best use" after identifymg elements that would
be taken into account by btlyers and sellers n settling the price. These elements include land desenption and dimensions.
planning and other constraints on development and the potential for alternative use. Operational land has been valued by
Assetval In 2017/18 using a spread of both observable mputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 Inputs). For
community land. some are valued by Assetval m 2017/18 using observable inputs (level 2 inputs) while the majority is prevously
valued at Valuer General unimproved cap tal value (UCV) which takes into account highest and best use values

Other structures and land mprovements (deprecmble)
The value of structures and depreciable land Improvements have been assessed on the basis of replacement with a new
asset having sim lar service potential and includes anowances for preliminaries and professonal fees. These values have been
denved from a valuation by Australis Asset Advisory Group for 30/6/2016.
This asset class Includes Aerodromes Pools landscaping. gardens. sport change rooms grand stands etc.. Major components
Include pool structures, walls. roofs. pumps. fences, sheds. garden beds etc. Each component is assigned a useful life and
tong hfe component. based on engineenng estimates and are conditon rated at the hme of valuation. In some cases Council
has hmited data for this asset class in relaton to onginal construction date age and past maintenance and renewals history.

Water and sewer network
In recent years current replacement costs for water and sewer assets have been denved by Modern Engineenng Equivalent
Replacement Asset (MEERA) unit costs and lump sums. Vvater and sewer assets are componentised into mains treatment
plants. pumping statons. and reservoirs. All asset components are assigned a ong hfe component useful life and remaining
useful hfe. and were condition rated at time of revaluation. with the condition rating determining the rema ning useful life.
Valuations require a level of professional judgement from both the valuer and Council engineers and the valuation was carned
out through the use of condition assessments including through the use of cameras and maintenance/break histones for assets
that could not be accessed through a simple inspection. Limitation on current valuations include further data issues around
Counc I mains break histoncal data. and a lack of long term historical data on renewals.

Buddings
Buildings are valued by applyFng a unit rate to a Structure Or a sqUare metre rate to a building. baSed on its current replacement
cost These rates are denved from substantial analysis of construction costs from over 120 Councils ecross NSW by Councts
valuer (Valued by Assetval in 2017 18). Build ngs assets are componentised into Super structure Sub structure. Finishes,
Fittmgs and Services . Each component Is ass gned a useful life and remaming useful life with the remaining useful hfe based
on the condition assessment at the time of valuaton. Further Improvements to the valuaton could be achieved with further
detads on the level of componentisahon. as well as more in-depth maintenance history
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

(4) Fair value measurements using signifiCant unObservable inputs (level 3)

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.

Plant and Office Furniture and Land imp -
S '000 equipment equipment fittings Land depreciable

2019

Opening balance 12 337 28 95 4 427 1,505
Transfers from/(to) another asset
class / held for sale assets (1)
Purchases (GBV) 4.335 136 - 11

Disposals (WDV) (305) -
Depreciation and impairment (2.613) (15) (29) (49)
Revaluaton increment - - 8

Closing balance 13.754 149 65 4 435 1.467

2020

Opening balance 13.754 149 65 4.435 1 467
Transfers from/(to) another asset
class / held for sale assets (46) -
Purchases (GBV) 3 980 109 -- 198

Disposals (WDV) (611)

Depreciation and impairment (2.578) (30) (29) (49)
Closing balance 14.545 228 36 4.389 1.616

Other
Buildings structures Roads Bridges Footpaths

S '000 Restated Restated

2019

Opening balance 36.162 13.E5 908 387 56 31 7 4.128
Transfers from/(to) another asset
class / held for sale assets (352) 760 1 137 127 216
Purchases (GBV) 1.011 1.456 4.318 591 300
Depreciaton and impairment (1 892) (639) (4.526) (466) (137)
Closing balance 34.929 15.232 209.316 56.569 4.507

2020

Opening balance 34 929 15.232 209 316 56.569 4.507
Transfers from/(to) another asset
class / held for sale assets (96) - -
Purchases (GBV) 716 1,148 3.776 - 37

Depreciation and impairment (1 811) (681) (4 687) (471) (147)
Revaluation increment - - 836
Revaluation decrement - - (7.520) (3.953) -
Closing balance 33.738 15.699 200 885 52.145 5.233
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Bulk Stormwater Water supply Sewerage
$ '000 earthworks drainage network network Tip asset

2019

Opening balance 88 645 4 851 36 318 16.596 290
Transfers from/(to) another asset
class / held for sale assets - 3 304 460
Purchases (GBV) 85 580 206 181

Depreciation and impairment (110) (1.316) (603) (15)
Revaluation increment 560 257

Closing balance 88.645 4.829 36.446 16.916 456

2020

Opening balance 88 645 4.829 36 446 16 916 456
Puf chases (GBV) - 30 3.262 334

Disposals (WDV) - - - (432)

Depreciation and impairment - (111) (1.484) (668) (24)
Revaluaton increment 60.357 445 332 154

Closing balance 149.002 5.193 38.556 16.736

S '000 Quarry asset Total

2019

Opening balance 843 484,584
Transfers from/(to) another asset class - 2,654
Purchases (GBV) 609 13,819

Disposals (WDV) - (305)
Depreciaton and impa rment (48) (12,458)
Revaluaton increment 825

Closing balance 1.404 489,119

2020

Opening balance 1 404 489,119
Transfers from/(to) another asset class - (142)
Purchases (GBV) 492 14,082
Disposals (WDVi - (1,043)
Depreciat?n and impairment (85) (12,855)
Revaluation increment 62,124
Revaluation decrement (11,473)
Closing balance 1 811 539,812

b. Information relating to the transfers into and out of the level 3 fair valuation hierarchy (as disclosed in the table
above) includes:
No transfers were made during the year

continued on next page ... Page 70 of 83



Warrumbungle Shire Council Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

c. Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to fair value.

The following table summarises the quantitative nformation relating to the significant unobservable Inputs LISed in de?Ving
the various level 3 asset class fair values.

Valuation techniquels Unobservable inputs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment Cost approach " Gross Replacement Cost (purchase

price)
' Remaining Useful Life

Office equipment Cost approach ' Gross Replacement Cost (putchase
price)
* Remaining Useful Life

Furniture and fittings Cost approach ' Gross Replacement Cos1 (purchase
price)
' Remaining Useful Life

Operational land Market approach ' Similar local property pnces
Alternative use

Cummunity land i and Values from NSW VG ^ Untmproved capital value from
Valuer General

Land improvements (depreclable) Cost approach (depreciated - Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Life

Buildings Cost approach (depreciated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Life

Other structures Cost approach (depreciated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Life

Roads Cost approach (depree:ated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Life

Bridges Cost approach (depreciated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Cond tion

Remaining Useful Life

Footpaths Cost approach (deprec ated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Life

Bulk earthworks Cost approach (replacement cost) Gross Replacement Cost

Stormwater drainage Cost approach (deprectated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) Asset Cond tion

Remaining Useful Life

Water supply network Cost approach (depreciated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) * Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Life

Sewer supply network Cost approach (depreciated Gross Replacement Cost
replacement cost) ^ Asset Condition

Remaining Useful Lite

Other Cost approach Asset Condition
Remaining Useful Life

Tip assets Cost approach Unit cost assumptions for rehab rates
discount rates. CPI and regulation
changes

Ouarry assets Cost approach Unit cost assumptions for rehab rates.
discount rates. CP1 and regulation
changes
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Note 24. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

d. The valuation process for level 3 fair value measurements

Warrumbungle Shtre Council undertakes to recognise it s assets at fair value. Whilst this method does not suit some asset
categones such as Plant & Equipment or Office furniture it is the best available method to determine the value of assets such
as roads and buildings.

The process by council determines is through

' A re examination of the fa r value of the relevant asset classes as specified by the OLG on a five year rotaton:
Seek an external valuer with good knowledge and reputation to undertake the valuation.
The "Valuer" selects a sample of assets and in conjunction with Council Staff will then examine the sample to determine

any adjustments required.
' During this process the adequacy and accuracy of costing and usage assumptions are analysed and addressed as required:
' After the physical examination the Valuer goes over the findings with Council and invites questions and feedback
' In conjunction with Council's input the Valuer wdl then make a determination on which Council will act

(5) Highest and best use

All of Council s non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use
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Note 25. Related party disclosures

(a) Key management personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or
indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation Included in the income Statement is:

.......... .................................--.-........... .......-.... . .. .-.... . ..........,. .. ... . . ............-..
$'000 2020 2019

Compensation:
Sherl-term benefits 759 646

Superannualion 98 61

Total est 90[_

(b) Other transactions with KMP and their related partles

Council has determined that transactions at arm's length between KMP and Council as part of Council delivering a public service objective (e.g. access to library or Coundi sw(rnmIng
pool by KMP) vdII not be disdosed,

There are no other disclosures to be made by KMP.

Note 26, Events occurring after the reporting date

Coundi is unaware of any material or significant 'noidadjusting events' that should be disclosed,
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Note 27. Statement of developer contributions

Under the Environmenta{ Planning and Assessatent Act 1979. Council has significant obligallons to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvernent of amenities or
services) Infrashucture in new release areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be tess than the cost of this Infrastructure. requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.

Summary of contributions and levies

..,.. aS.MME!! ..___..... •5=ME20. ...._Conmbutione Cumulative
received dwing the yer Interest Expenditure Inltmal He$6 as tnicmml

Opening eamed &Iring borrowtng residered borrow(ngs
saiance Clith Nouash

lrLY.
...... . .. .. .. . . .yfor.. ram a I duef(pay le

RoadS $ - - - - 5
open space 7 - 7
Community facilities 6 6
01her 2 - ..- - - - 2 -
Bushfce 12 - - - - 12 ...

3L11 contributions - under a plan 32 - - - ... - 32

Total $7.11 and $7.12 revenue under
plans 32 - - - - - 32

57.11 not under plans 118 50 - 1 - - 169
S64 contributions

Total contributions
....... _..... . .

2 2 50 33
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S7 11 Contributions - under a

cmapiounan mm . wnernineuvate s mm couNc

S7.11 Contributions - not
Under a plan

coNm:IBU HONS -. NO F UNDER A PL AN

1 1F1 50 - 1 16

S64 contnbutions

304 Contrebuhon;
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Note 28. Result by fund

General Water Sewer
$ '000 2020 2020 2020

Income Statement by fund

Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 10.252 1 855 1.737
User charges and fees 4.198 1.686 182

Interest and investment revenue 322 62 76
other revenues 2.126 9 2

Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 16 121 - -
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3 395 235 145
Net gains from disposal of assets 599

Share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity
method 44

Total income from continuing operations 37.057 3.847 2.142

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 13.340 1.037 552

Borrowing costs 277 30

Materials and contracts 6 289 691 205
Depreciation and amortisation 10.712 1 55/ 01

Other expenses 3.700 1,125 561

Total expenses from continuing operations 34,327 4.440 2.019

Operating result from continuing operations 2,730 (593) 123

Net operating result for the year 2,730 (593) 123

Net operating result attributable to each council fund 2.730 (593) 123

Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes (665) (828) (22

NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross -that is they inclu:1e ntvarnal charges and recovenes n1ade between the funds.

General fund refers to aFI of council's activities excep1 for its water and sewer activities whir.h are listed sepaiately.
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Note 28. Result by fund (continued)

General Water Sewer
5'000 2020 2020 2020

Statement of Financial Position by fund

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 699 354 3.806
Investments 11.500

Receivables 1.887 1.219 660
Inventories 719 6

Contract assets 1.453 174 18

Other 53 -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 142 - -
Total current assets 18.453 1.753 4.484

Non-current assets

Receivables (192) - 192

Inventories 299 -
Infrastructure. property. plant and equipment 491.089 41 461 17.767
Investments accounted for using the equity method 444

Intangib[e assets 29

Right of use assets 246
Total non-current assets 491.915 41.461 17.959

TOTAL ASSETS 510,368 43.214 22.443

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 2.020 5

Contract hab Irties 1 236 29
Lease liabilities 45

Borrowings 864 102

Provisions 4 355 204 88
Total current liabilities 8.520 340 88

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 223

Borrowings 2.664 267
Provisions 3 102
Total non-current liabilities 5.989 267

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,509 607 88

Net assets 495,859 42.607 22.355

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 391 073 19.898 11.514
Revaluation reserves 104.786 22,709 10.841
Council equity interest 495.859 42.607 22.355

Total equity 495.859 42.607 22 355

NB. All amounts disclosed above are gross - that is. they include intemal chaiges and recovenes made between the funds. Assets and
habilities shown in the water and sewer columns are restncted for use for these activities.

General fund refers to all of Council's activ1t es except for its water and sewer activ1ties wnich are hsted separately.
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Note 28. Result by fund (continued)

Details of individual internal loans for the year ended 30 June 2020

(1n accordance with s410(3) of the Local Govern!nent Act 1993)

Details of individual internal loans Internal Loan 1

Borrower (by purpose) General Fund

Lender (by purpose) Sewer Fund

Date of minister's approval 23/12/2012
Date raised 01/07/2012

Term (years) 10

Dates of maturity 30/6/2021

Rate at interest 5.8%
Amount onginally raised 1.500.000

Total repaid during year (pnncipal and rnterest) 884 992

Principal outstanding at end of year 372,744
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Note 29(a). Statement of performance measures - consolidated results

Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark
S '000 2020 2020 2019 2018

(Restated)
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding
capital grants and contributions less operating
expenses (2,158) (5.59)% (17.10)% (8.96)% >0.00%
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 38,628
capital grants and contnbutions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all

grants and contributions 22,507 53.08% 47.51% 46.45% >60.00%
Total continuing operating revenue 42,403

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets [ess all externa restnctons 15,186

2.95x 4.3-7x 4.05x m1.50xCurrent habdities less specific purpose liabihlies 5,145

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest
and depreciaton/tmpairment/amortisaton 11,119

.....__._.. ...._.....----- 10.30x 5.05x 7.30x 2 DOx
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 1,080
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates. annual and extra charges outstanding 1,690

. 10.93% 10.07% 8 69% 10 00%Rates annual and extra charges collectible 15,457

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year s cash and cash equivalents plus aH

term deposits 18,359 7.74 6.97 5.76 >3.00
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating 2,371 mths mths mths mths
and financing activities

Excludes fan value incr ements on investment properties eversal of evaluation decrements leve1ual of impainnent losses on
receivables. nei gam on sale of assets and net share of nierests in join1 ventures anci associates using Ihe equity method and includes
pensioner rate subsidies

Excludes impairment/revaluation decrements of IPPE fajr value decrements on investment propernes. net loss on disposal of assels
and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and assocrates using the equity method
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Note 29(b). Statement of pedormance measures - by fund

General Indicators Water Indicators Sewer Indicators Benchmark
$ 000 2020 2010 2020 2010 2020 2019

(Res!ated1 (Recitated) (Rer.tated
1. Operating performance rotto

161a1·.or.ur·umg op·mbn9 u·verun de:hr . intil pants and cer:tonation·. le:;..

o ra expt:r ses (3.96)% ilf, 02 (22.92)% 04.451. (1.10)% ut tor n nin.
ioial cmhilu?g operat nrf reven.m c w d.rin ap ul a

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
O CD inU it } -JPer.'I fiti rUVUl ti.0 eMChUJi'i 1 U-li.1113l Gr /F-t-- .:113 4.G! ti!tiuli- f½

. 46.41% 4.' 3.1
. 93.89% im SC 93.23% 08 m 403::· .etul con inn ng op ·rating reventm

3. Unrostricted current ratin
Current aw.el'- less all extemal resh.ct D

. 3437 4 4.h 5.16x 7 14v. 50.95x 4 1 mare·1t Imtnlit es less :.pr c purpo a li?tHme

4. Debi servíce cover raho
Operahog result FMore caplial excludo nim

ck:proc.a!.crif.rhpaiin1er1t/artinite;MI.n
. 9.03x 4..t/ x 25.30x 12.rA

I ine pal rer lyments Sittmnieni of Casn ! Irwei clu1. hc!iowma cor.1 hir.m
S|.3te•vn1

5. Rates, annual et1arges. interest and extra charges outstanding percentage
gos ar:nmi and extra t rge:. nut--tandini1

14.24% B.32 0.00% 18 44.. 0.00% 12 05'rer. anrmal and ·×lra chitr aer. :011 rtele

G. Cash expense cover ratio
Current s oy-h arul (..m.h eq vwetic. I he. all ierr depi-sits 5.99 G 30 4.37 n 42 .

r.

Payrn· nts from cash IIa.·. pe and f n no a e:, rnths n 11e ouh:. .
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 29(c). Statement of performance measures - consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio
. . . ... ....... . . .. . . ... . . . . . . ... .. . . .. . .. ... .. . ... .

I
Commentary on 2019/20 result

Purpose of operating
... ... . . .............__.. ....... performance ratio 2019/20 ratio (5.59)%

a ·5.59

8.96
This ratro measures councifs

achievement G! cantaining The continued pmusion of captal gards ma rittiins
. operat-ng expenditure within this ratio below benchmark

operating revenue.

17.10

Benchmark - - 0.00 Ratio ach!eves berichmark

Source of benchmark Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting //28 Rabo rs outside benchmark

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
. . .

Commentary on 2019/20 result
Purpose of own source
operating revenue ratio 2019/20 ratio 53.08%

46.45 47.51

liance an external fund g ceim nm gmnt mne kan 2 n

so,nces coch as operat9.9 arants
has teen tou wcce½ in adam19 Grant

ancf centr:but·ans monies (hat is tefler.:ted in this remin

Benchmad G0 00 Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark Code of Accounting Pr actice and Unancial Reporhng #28 Ratio m outside benchmas k

3. Unrestricted current ratio

Purpose of unrestricted
4 n current ratio 2019/20 ratio 2.95x

a . 2.95

To assess the adequacy of

¬g -arqar 4 ,q, .,n,ilty U-, Th·s ra c. ·s ..ve!| a e pm tc.r±myr.. ?
___.-- __.-- ut sfy ourgai·ons in the short ultimatay see a ciewn sprke when the EAG s

term for ine unrestnued art.vities prepaynient 15 Gloppe:f.
of Council

- . . . .. . . .... . . . .. . . .. . . . ..
|

Benemnark - > 1 50× Raho achieves benchmark

Source of benchmar k. Code of Accounting Prachce and Financial ReporUng #28 Ratto is oulSide benchmark
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Note 29(c). Statement of performance measures - consolidated results (graphs)

4. Debt service cover ratio

Commentary on 2019/20 result
1930 Purpose of debt service

cover ratio 2019/20 ratio 10.30x

7.30

c

5.05

This rat-o rileastwes th

availabhty w operatng cash to
reflects councIs commitment to use ce only asservme deot includmg iriteres

r·rincipal and lease payment

Benchmar - 2 c0± Ralio achieves benchmark

Source of benchrnark Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 Ratio is outside benchmark

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and extra charges outstanding percentage
Purpose of rates· Commentary on 2019/20 result
annual charges

10.93 interest and extra
2019/20 ratio 10.93%1007 charges outstanding

8.69

To assess the 1mpact M

unca k cted rates and annual The ocreate n the ratio demonnicates the struggles
c.hmges on counc:1 s IIquidih and 01 a moaght affecteo conimumiy
the adequac·/ af reco.ory effods

. .. . .

Ir ?om :wo
. .

Rerxremark - - 10001 Rato achieves benchmaik

SouIce of benchmark Code of Accountmg Practice and f inanaal Reposting #28 Ratio 1s outside henchmark

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Commentary on 2019/20 result

6.97 expense cover ratio 2019/20 ratio 7.74 mths .

5.76

h s nquany atio ina.cmes the

extenses witnout add tional cast

Benchmark - > 3 00mths Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting #28 Ratio is outside benchmaf k
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OR-Ge

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the general purpose financial statements

Warrumbungle Shire Council

To the Councillors of Warrumbungle Shire Council

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Warrumbungle Shire Council (the Council),
which comprise the Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement and Statement
of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Statement of Financial Position as at
30 June 2020, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In my opinion:

• the Councils accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division)

• the financial statements:

- have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this
Division

- are consistent with the Councils accounting records

- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at
30 June 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

• all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained

• no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light
during the audit.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 ] f 02 9275 7179 | mail@audit.nsw.gov.au I audiLnsw.gov.au



Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements'
section of my report.

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

• Australian Auditing Standards

• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Boards APES 110 'Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)' (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive govemment, can remove an
Auditor-General

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils

• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I believe the audit evidence ] have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Other Information
The Councils annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are
responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other
information I have received comprise the special purpose financial statements and Special Schedules
(the Schedules).

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not

express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the special purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, I must report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such
internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting.



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

• obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

• issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.cov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor's report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
• on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows,

and Note 23 Material budget variations
• on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special Schedule -

Permissible income for general rates

• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Unaib Jeoffrey

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

23 November 2020
SYDNEY
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Special Purpose Financial Statements
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Background

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfiHing their requirements under National Competition Policy

ii The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a level playing field' between persons/entities competing
in a market place. particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially the principle is that government businesses. whethei Commonwealth. state or local should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

iii. For Council. the pnnciple of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being water
supply. sewerage services. abattotrs. gas production and reticulation. and (b) those activities with a turnover of more
than $2 million that Counci[ has foimaHy declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities.

iv. In preparing these financial statements for Councds self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attnbution Including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from CounciFs borrowing position by companson with
commercial rates)
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Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:

• the NSW Government Policy Statement Application of Nationa! Competition Policy to Local Governrnent
• the Division of Local Govemment Guidelines Prit:ing and Costing for Council Businesses - A Guide to Competitive

Neutrality
- the Local Government Cocle of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
- the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guidelines.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:

- present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Councifs declared business activities for the year and
- accord with Council s accounting and other records.
• present overhead reaUocation charges to the water and sewerage businesses as fair and reasonable

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 19 November 2020.

Cir Ambrose Doolan Clr Angello lannuzzi
Mayor Councillor
19 November 2020 19 November 2020

Roger Bailey Kim Parker
General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
19 November 2020 19 November 2020
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Income Statement - Water Supply Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

$ '000 2020 2019

Income from continuing operations
Access charges 1 855 1 578
User charges 1 G86 1.433
Fees - 3

Interest 62 46
Grants and contributions provided for non-capital purposes - 16

Other income 9 10

Total income from continuing operations 3,612 3.086

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 1 037 1.006
Borrowing costs 30 28
Materials and contracts 691 670
Depreciation amortsat?n arid impatrment 1.557 1.389
Other expenses 1.125 1.056
Total expenses from continuing operations 4.440 4.149

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (828) (1,063)

Grants and coninbutions provided for capital purposes 235 1,329
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (593) 266

Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (593) 266

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (593) 266

Plus accumulated surplus 20.463 20.197
Plus/less: other adjustments 28

Closing accumulated surplus (deficit) 19.898 20 463

Return on capital % (1 96,, (2 5)%
Subsidy from Council 1 163 1.581

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax (593) 266
Less capital grants and contnbutons (excluding developer contributions (235) (1.329)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes _ _

Potential dividend calculated from surplus
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Income Statement - Sewerage Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

$ '000 2020 2019

Income from continuing operations
Access charges 1 737 1 514
User charges 119 95

Liquid trade waste charges 63 48
interest 76 91

Other income 2 5

Total income from continuing operations 1.997 1.753

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 552 513
Materials and contracts 205 111

Depreciation amortsation and impairment 701 637
Other expenses 561 599
Total expenses from continuing operations 2.019 1,860

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (22) (107)

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 145 34

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 123 (73)

Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 123 (73)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 23 (13)

Plus accumulated surplus 11.391 11.464

Closing accumulated surplus (deficit) 11.514 11.391

Return on capital % (0.1)% (0 6)%

Subsidy from Council 178 341

Calculation of dividend payable:

Surplus (deficit) after tax 123 (73)
Less capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contnbutions) (145) (34)

Surplus for dividend calculation purposes - _

Potential dividend calculated from surplus - -
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Income Statement - Warrumbungle Quarry
for the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
S '000 Category 2 Category 2

Income from continuing operations
lJser charges 787 567
Profit from the sale of assets 74

Total income from continuing operations 787 641

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 156 155
Borrowing costs 7 10

Materials and contracts 393 143
Depreciaton. amortisation and impairment 55 62
Other expenses 492 651
Total expenses from continuing operations 1.103 1,021

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts (316) (380)

Grants and contributons provided for capital purposes - 256
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts (316) (124)

Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax (316) (124)

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (316) (124)

Plus accumulated surplus 188 312
Closing accumulated surplus (deficit) (128) 188

Return on capital % (734)' (77.7)%
Subsidy from Council 313 376
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Statement of Financial Position - Water Supply Business Activity
as at 30 June 2020

$ '000 2020 2019

ASSETS
Current assets
Contract assets 174

Cash and cash equivalents 354 1 036
Receivables 1 219 1.064
Inventones 6 6
Total current assets 1,753 2,106

Non-current assets
Infrastructure. property. plant and equipment 41.461 41.380
Total non-current assets 41.461 41.380

TOTAL ASSETS 43.214 43.486

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Contract tiabihttes 29

Payables 5 5

Borrowings 102 86
Provisions 204 190
Total current liabilities 340 281

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 267 366
Total non-current liabilities 267 366

TOTAL LIABILITIES 607 647

NET ASSETS 42.607 42.839

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 19.898 20.463
Revaluation reserves 22.709 22.3 6

TO-TAL EQULTY 42,607 42,839
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Statement of Financial Position - Sewerage Business Activity
as at 30 June 2020

$ '000 2020 2019

ASSETS
Current assets

Contract assets 18

Cash and cash equivalents 3.806 2 795
Receivables 660 574
Total current assets 4,484 3.369

Non-current assets
Receivables 192 1 OS9

Infrastructure, property. plant and equipment 17.767 17.731
Total non-current assets 17 959 18,790

TOTAL ASSETS 22.443 22.159

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Provisions 88 81

Total current liabilities 88 81

TOTAL LIABILITIES 88 81

NET ASSETS 22,355 22.078

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 11 514 11.391
Revaluation reserves 10.841 10.687

TOTAL EQ UITY 22,355 22.078
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Statement of Financial Position - Warrurnbungle Quarry
as at 30 June 2020

. .

2020 2019
S '000 Category 2 Category 2

ASSETS
Current assets

Receivables 62 41

Inventones 197 316
Total current assets 259 357

Non-current assets
Infrastructure. properly. plant and equipment 421 476
Total non-current assets 421 476

TOTAL ASSETS 680 833

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Due to General Fund 440 294
Payables 108 71

Borrowings 49 45
Total current liabilities 597 410

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 211 235
Total non-current liabilities 211 235

TOTAL LIABILITIES 808 645

NET ASSETS (128) 188

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus (deficit) 188

TOTAL EQ UITY (128) 188
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Spectal Purpose Financial
Statements (SPFS) for National Competition Pohcy (NCP) reportng purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Goveinment. For the purposes of
these statements. the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement critena of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 2093 (NSW). the Local Government { General) Regulation 2005. and the Local Govemment Code of Accounting Practice
and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or. except where specifica[Iy stated current values of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs
appropriately described have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Pohcy

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assets/habilities receivable from/payable to Councils general fund These
balances reflect a nottonal Intra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business activities.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the pnnctple of competitive neutrality in its business activities as part of the National Competition Pohey
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government.

The framework for Its apphcat?n is set out in the June 1996 NSW government pohey statement titled 'Application of National
Competition Policy to Local Government.

The Pricing nnd Casting tor Council Businesses. A Guido to Compennve Neutrality issued by the Office of Local Government
in July 1997 has also been adopted

The pncing and costing guidelines outhne the process for identifying and eBocating costs to actMties and provide a standard
for disclosure requirements.

These disclosures are reflected in Council s pncing and/or financial reporting systems and include taxation equivalents Council
subsidies. return on investments (rate of return) and dmdends paid

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pncing and Casting tot Counct) Businesses - A Gunle to Competmve Neuti altly Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activihes

Category 1

(Where gross operating tumoveris over $2 million)

Warrumbungle Shire Council Combined Water Supply

All individual Water Funds are now combined into one entity known as Warrumbungle Water Fund. This entity incorporates
the previous individual Operations and Net Assets of the Water Supply Systems of the towns of Baiadine. Binnaway
Coonabarabran. Coolah. Dunedoo and Mendcoran.

Category 2

(where gross operating tumover is less than $2 million)

a. Warrumbungle Shire Council Sewerage Service

All Individual Sewerage Services are now combined into one entity known as Warrumbungle Sewerage Fund. This entity
incorporates the previous individual Operations and Net Assets of the Sewerage Treatment and Reticulation Systems of the
towns Baradine. Coonabarabran. Coolah and Dunedoo.

continued on neM page ... Page 10 of 13
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

b. Warrumbungle Quarry

Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars.

(i) Taxation equivalent charges

Council is hable to pay vanous taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case they are disclosed as a cost of operatons
Just like all other costs.

However where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by pnvate sector businesses. such as income
tax. these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpose Financial Statements.

For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent. the following taxation
equivalents have been apphed to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include Counc I s non-business
activitres).

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rnte - 27.5%

PayroH tax - 5.45% on the value of taxable salanes and wages in excess of S850 000.

In accordance with the Department of industry (Dol) -- Water guidelines. a payment for the amount calculated as the annual
tax equ valent charges (excluding income tax) must be paid from water supply and sewerage busmess activities.

The payment of taxation equivalent charges referred to in the Dol - Water guidehnes as a dividend for taxation equivalent
may be apphed for any purpose allowed under the Local Govemment Act, 1993

Achievement of substantial comphance to the Dol - Water guidehnes is not a prerequisite for the payment of the tax equivalent
charges. however the payment must noI exceed $.3 per assessment.

income tax

An income tax equivalent has been apphed on the profits of the business activities

Vvhilst Income tax is not a spec?c cost for the purpose of pricing a good or service it needs to be taken into account in terms
of assessing the rate of return required on capital Invested

Accordingly the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts.
as would be apphed by a private sector competitor. That is. it should include a provision equivalent to the corporate income
tax rate. currently 27.5%.

income tax 1s only apphed where a gain! (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved

Since the taxaton equivalent is notional - that is. it is payable to Councit as the 'owner of business operations - it represents
an internal payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly. there is no need for disclosure of internal
charges in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 27.5% is/is not the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date No adjustments have been
made for variations that have occurred dunng the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges payable on all category 1 businesses has been apphed to all land assets
owned or exclusively used by the business activity.

continued on next page ... Page 11 of 13
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Loan and debt guarantee fees
The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that council business activities face true commercial borrowing costs in line
with pnvate sector competitors.

[n order to calculate a debt guarantee fee. Council has determined what the differential borrowing rate would have been
between the commercial rate and Councit s borrowing rate for its business activities.

(ii) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers and the funding of those subsidies must be explicitly
disclosed.

Subsidies occur when Counc1j provides services on a less-than-cost-recovery basis. This option is exercised on a range of
services in order for Council to meet its community service obhgations.

Accordingly. subsidies disclosed (in relation to National Competition Policy) represents the difference between revenue
generated from rate of return pricing and revenue generated from prices set by Council in any given financial year.

The overaH effect of subsidies is contained within the Income Statement of each reported business activity.

(iii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP pohcy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses would be expected to generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field

Such funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financrng future nvestment stiategies.

The actual rate of return achieved by each business acovity is disclosed at the foot of each respective income Statement

The rate of retLirn IS Calculated as follows

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of I,PP&E as at 30 June

As a minimum. business act vities should generate a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 0.88%
at 30/6/20.

(iv) Dividends

Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external entities.

Local government water supply and sewerage businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend from its water supply or
sewerage business surplus.

Each dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with the Department of Industry - Water guidelines and must
not e.xceed

- 550% of this surplus in any one year or
• the number of water supply or sewerage assessments at 30 June 2020 multiplied by $30 dess the payment for tax

equivalent charges. not exceeding $3 per assessment)

In accordance with the Department of Industry - Water guidehnes a Dividend Payment form Statement of Compliance.
Unqualified independent Financial Audit Report and Comphance Audit Report are required to be submitted to the Department
of Industry - Water.

Page 12 of 13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the special purpose financial statements

Warrumbungle Shire Council

To the Councillors of Warrumbungle Shire Council

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (the financial statements) of
Warrumbungle Shire Councils (the Council) Declared Business Activities, which comprise the
Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement of each Declared Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Statement of Financial Position of each Declared Business
Activity as at 30 June 2020 and Note 1 Significant accounting policies for the Business Activities
declared by Council.

The Declared Business Activities of the Council are:

• Water Supply Business Activity
•

. Sewerage Business Activity
• Warrumbungle Quarry.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Councils declared Business Activities as at 30 June 2020, and their financial performance for the
year then ended, in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards described in Note 1 and the
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting - update number 28 (LG
Code).

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule' section of my
report.

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

• Australian Auditing Standards

• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 'Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)' (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 | f 02 9275 7179 | mail@auditnsw-govau | auditnsw.gov.au



Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils
• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting
Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which describes
the basis of accounting. The financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the
Council's financial reporting responsibilities under the LG Code. As a result, the financial statements
may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Information
The Councils annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to
the financial statements and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are
responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other
information l have received comprise the general purpose financial statements and Special Schedules
(the Schedules).

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, l do not

express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements and Special Schedule 'Permissible income for general rates'. In connection with my audit
of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, I must report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
and for determining that the accounting policies, described in Note 1 to the financial statements, are
appropriate to meet the requirements in the LG Code. The Councillors' responsibility also includes
such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Councils
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

• obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

• issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or



in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.cov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor's report.

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial

statements on any website where they may be presented
• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Unaib Jeoffrey

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

23 November 2020
SYDNEY
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Permissible income for general rates

Calculation Calculation
$ '000 2020/21 2019/20

Notional general income calculation 1

Last year notional general income yield 8.153 7 932
Plus or minus adjustments 2

. 6 4

Notional general income
. 8,159 7,936

Permissible income calculation
Or rate peg percentage 2 60% 2.70%

Or pfus rate peg amount
. 212 214

Sub-total 8,371 8,150

Plus (or minus) last year s carry forward total
. (2) (4)

Less valuation objectons claimed in the previous year 5

Sub-total (2) 1

Total permissible income
. 8.369 8,151

Less not?nal general income yield 8 353 8.153
Catch-up or (excess) result 16 (2)

Less unused catch-up (1)
Carry forward to next year . 15 (2)

Notes

The notional general income will not mconcile wrth rate income In the hnancial statenents n the conesponding yeal. The statements are
reported on an accrual accounting basin which FnCludG Umounts that relate to priOr yea S inteG income

Adjustments account tor changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the yem.
The adjustments are called supplementary valuations as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916.

Unused catch-up amounts will be deducted If they are not caught up within 2 years. Usually counctis will have a nominal carry forward
figure. these amounts can be adjusted for in setting the rates in a future year.

Caffy 10tWald amounts which are in excess (an amount that exccreds the permissible income) require minister al apprcval by order
published in the NSW Govmnment Gazelle in accordance with section 512 of the Local Govemment Act 1993 the OLG will extract
these amounts from Councds Perri1issible income tor general rates Slatemen! in (he f nancial data retum (f-DFQ to administer this
pIOCUSs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates

Warrumbungle Shire Council

To the Councillors of Warrumbungle Shire Council

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates (the
Schedule) of Warrumbungle Shire Council (the Council) for the year ending 30 June 2021.

In my opinion, the Schedule is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting - update number 28
(LG Code), and is in accordance with the books and records of the Council.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule' section of my
report.

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the:

• Australian Auditing Standards

- Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 'Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)' (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

- providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils
• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001 | t 02 9275 7101 | f 02 9275 7179 | mail@audlinsw.gov.au [ audiLnsw.gov.au



Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting
Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to the special purpose framework used to prepare the
Schedule. The Schedule has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council's reporting
obligations under the LG Code. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Information
The Councirs annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to
the Schedule and my Independent Auditor's Report thereon. The Councillors are responsible for the
other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor's Report, the other information I have
received comprise the general purpose financial statements, speciai purpose financial statements and
Special Schedule 'Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2020.

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not express any
form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local
Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements and the special purpose financial statements.

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, I must report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Councillors' Responsibilities for the Schedule
The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code.
The Councillors' responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is

necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Councils ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule

My objectives are to:

• obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

• issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the Schedule.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.cov.aulauditors responsibilities/ar8.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor's report.



The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance:

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any

website where it may be presented
about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the Schedule.

Unaib Jeoffrey

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

23 November 2020
SYDNEY



Warrumbungle Shire Counch

Report on Infrastructure Assets
as at 30 June 2020
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Warrumbungle Shire CouncH

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2020
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Warrumbungle Shire Council special schedules 202o

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2020

Amounts indicator Prior periods Benchmark
S '000 2020 2020 2019 2018

Infrastructure asset performance
indicators (consolidated)

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio '

Asset renewals 4,909
48.80% 53.48% 106.99% =100.00

Depreciation. amortisation and impairment 10,060

Infrastructure backlog ratio '

Estimated cost to bnng assets to a satisfactory
standard 3,001 0.58% 0.64% 065% <2.00%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 517,187

Asset maintenance ratio

Actual asset maintenance 7,696
104.00% 105.40% 107.71% >100.00%Required asset maintenance 7,400

Cost to bring assets to agreed service tevel

Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Council 32,062 4.51% 5 05% 5.02%
Gross replacement cost 710,428

All assel performance indicators are calculated using classes ident fied In the previous table.

Excludes Work in Progmss (WiP)

Asset renewals represent the replacemen| and/or refurbishment of exisling assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as opposed to
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) thal inemases capacity/performance

continued on next page ... Page 6 of 8
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Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30..une 202a
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Warrumbungle Shire Council

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2020

GencrM fund Water fund Sewer fund Benchinark
5 '000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (by
fund)
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